
 

                    

 
 

Notice of public meeting of  
 

West & City Centre Area Planning Sub-Committee 
 
To: Councillors Watson (Chair), Funnell, Galvin, Gillies (Vice-

Chair), Jeffries, Looker, Orrell, Reid and Semlyen 
 

Date: Thursday, 14 February 2013 
 

Time: 3.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Site visits for this meeting will commence at 11.00 am on 
Wednesday 13 February 2013 meeting at Oliver House.  
 

1. Declarations of Interest   
 

At this point, Members are asked to declare: 
 

• any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests  

• any prejudicial interests or  
• any disclosable pecuniary interests 

 
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 
 
 

2. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 38) 
 

To approve and sign the minutes of the meetings of the West & 
City Centre Area Planning Sub-Committee held on 5 December 
2012 and 10 January 2013. 



 
 

3. Public Participation   
 

It is at this point in the meeting that members of the public who 
have registered their wish to speak can do so. The deadline for 
registering is by 5pm the working day before the meeting, in this 
case 5pm on Wednesday 13 February 2013.  Members of the 
public can speak on specific planning applications or on other 
agenda items or matters within the remit of the Committee. 
  
To register please contact the Democracy Officer for the meeting, 
on the details at the foot of this agenda. 
 
 

4. Plans List   
 

To determine the following planning applications related to the 
West and City Centre Area. 
 

a) Oliver House,  Bishophill Junior, York, YO1 6ES 
(12/03598/FULM)  (Pages 39 - 46) 
 

Change of use from elderly peoples home (Use Class C2) to offices 
and workspace and erection of single storey front and rear 
extensions.  [Micklegate Ward] [Site Visit] 
 

b) 57 Woodlea Avenue, York, YO26 5JX (12/03627/FUL)  (Pages 47 
- 52) 
 

Erection of porch to front [Acomb Ward] 
 

c) Army and Navy Stores, 54 - 56 Fossgate, York, YO1 9TF 
(12/02985/FUL)  (Pages 53 - 66) 
 

Change of use from shop (Use Class A1) to mixed use comprising 
retail, restaurant/cafe and drinking establishment. [Guildhall Ward] 
[Site Visit] 
 
 

5. Urgent Business   
 

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  
Local Government Act 1972 
 
 



 
Democracy Officers: 
  
Name: Catherine Clarke and Louise Cook (job share) 
Contact Details:  

• Telephone – (01904) 551031 
• E-mail – catherine.clarke@york.gov.uk and 
louise.cook@york.gov.uk   
(If contacting us by e-mail, please send to both democracy 
officers named above) 

 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
Contact details are set out above.  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



About City of York Council Meetings 
 
Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and 
contact details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no 
later than 5.00 pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of 
business on the agenda or an issue which the committee has 
power to consider (speak to the Democracy Officer for advice 
on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy 
Officer. 

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s 
website or from Democratic Services by telephoning York 
(01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this 
meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for 
viewing online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of 
individual reports or the full agenda are available from Democratic 
Services.  Contact the Democracy Officer whose name and contact 
details are given on the agenda for the meeting. Please note a 
small charge may be made for full copies of the agenda 
requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  
The meeting will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue 
with an induction hearing loop.  We can provide the agenda or 
reports in large print, electronically (computer disk or by email), in 
Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take longer than others 
so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours for 
Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-
by or a sign language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact 
the Democracy Officer whose name and contact details are given 
on the order of business for the meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in 
another language, either by providing translated information or an 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



interpreter providing sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone 
York (01904) 551550 for this service. 

 
 
Holding the Cabinet to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Cabinet (39 out 
of 47).  Any 3 non-Cabinet councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of 
business following a Cabinet meeting or publication of a Cabinet 
Member decision. A specially convened Corporate and Scrutiny 
Management Committee (CSMC) will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Cabinet meeting, where a 
final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees 
appointed by the Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new 

ones, as necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the 
committees to which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and 
reports for the committees which they report to; 

• York Explore Library and the Press receive copies of all public 
agenda/reports; 

• All public agenda/reports can also be accessed online at other 
public libraries using this link 
http://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1 

 

Page 2



WEST AND CITY CENTRE AREA PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE  
 

SITE VISITS 

 

Wednesday 13 February 2013 
 

No mini-bus for these visits, Members meet at Oliver House at 11.00 
 
TIME 

(Approx) 

 

SITE ITEM 

11.00 Oliver House,  Bishophill Junior 4a 

12:00 Army and Navy Stores, 54 - 56 Fossgate 4c 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

    
 

       

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



����������	
�����
��� ������������������

�������� ���������������������������������
�� !�"��������

#���� $�#���� ���%&'%�

�������� �"������"�������"��(�)���*+�
,������+����-��+���������(-���!�)���*+�
.�,,����+��""/��+�"�����+����#���#�
��������

�
�

���� ����	
������
����	���
�
�0�������1��2�������1�	�����3�
��4�5���	���0��������26�
�
����� �����4�4�5�� ��7������	�-�����
''���3�7	���	����
�

����
����	���7�8��+�
�������+���������
7�4��7����6�

����59�
������074�
5����	�
��8�4�7�4�
�0������
�	�
	�
�����47�����
17�����733	�8�6�

����7	74����#���
��5�+�:&��7��27���
�

����
����	���7�8��+�
�������+���������
7�4��7����6�

����59�
������074�
5����	�
��8�4�7�4�
�0������
�	�
	�
�����47�����
17�����733	�8�6�

'��0�	
0���	���� ����
����	���7�8��+�
�������+���������
7�4��7����6�

����0��	�;��������
����
����	��7����6�

<�������������27��� ����
����	���7�8��+�
�������+���������
7�4��7����6�

����59�
������074�
5����	�
��8�4�7�4�
�0������
�	�
	�
�����47�����
17�����733	�8�6�

�
�

���� �	
�����������
����	�	����
�
����0���3���������0��������2+����5�	��1�	��7�
�4����4�
�7	��7���
3�	���7�+�3	�9�4�
�7���	�4��
���75���3�
���7	������	������0���
��20��078������0��5������������0��72��476��������	�����1�	��
4�
�7	�46�
�

Agenda Item 2Page 5



�
�

���� �����
������
���������
�
���17��	�3�	��4��07���0�	��074�5�������	�2���	7����������3�7
�
��4�	��0������
��=����5��
��7	��
�37������
0�������2���	7��
�������1��0����0��	���������0�����������6�
�
�

���� ������������
�
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7��
0�4�������	�3�	�������0��������7���
#�	�
��	�(��7����2�7�4�����7��75���#�8���3����*�	��7���2�����0��
�����1��2�3�7����2�733��
7�����+���������2��0��3	�3��7���7�4�
	���87���3���
��
����4�	7������7�4�������2������0��8��1��7�4�
748�
�����
����������7�4�����
�	�6��
�
�

���� 
���������� �!����" #�$%������&���!�'�&(!�'�)��*+��
,*)-.���/-��
0��
�
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7��733��
7�������	������4�5���4��2�
�������
�	����	�7�4��	���7�5������	�7����2������	����>�������6��
�
���"�-�#?� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����

�0��
��4������������4�����0��	�3�	�6�
�
����"�?� �0��3	�3��7�+���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	�+�1���4�����
7������4���07	�����
����	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�+�1��0�
37	��
��7	�	���	��
������0����37
���3����0��
�3�
�7��0����	�
��7��	������0��41�����26������
0�
�0��3	�3��7��
��3�����1��0�����
��)�:�����0��
����������	
�#�8���3���������	�����
7����7��
7�4��7����7����7����2�����
��,	7��1�	
�
37	7��'<%�7�4�'<:�

�
�

��1� �2��1��&��2#��"1&�&3!�
&������&���!�'�&(!�'�)����4�
,*)-.�)�.-
��0��
�
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7������733��
7������	����0����	
�0�	��
��5��7�
����	8�
����	��0��87	�7��������
��4������'����3�	�����4�
733��
7�����'&@&''AB@,�������>���4��0�����3�	7	��3�	��������

Page 6



��	������2����7�3�	�7
75�����	�����7��7��7�5��7�
����7�4!5��3�����
��	�7���	�0�	�$���7	�6��
�
"���
�	��748���4��0��
����������07���0����5��7�
����	8�
��
	�3�	����07���0��3�	�7
75�����	8�������3�	3����1����7�4�7��
3	�������0�	������������75�����
7�������	�7�3�	�7�������7�4!5��
3����6�,�	�0�	��	�����7���1�����>�5������4��������
�	�7�������75����
0�1�
7��!�����1�����3�	7�������0������	��5�
7�����0���
7		7�2������4�������������0��������������6�"���
�	��
����	��4�
�07���0�	��074�5�������3	�5�����1��0�7�5��7�
����>����2��0��
����+�10�
0�074�5����7�
��
�	��10������5�	��733	�8�4��0��
���3�	7	��3�	���������1����7	��3	�8������6����5�	��
����	��4�
�07��	���4���������0��17	4�1�	��0733����	��0����7�4!5��3��������
	��7����������
�		����3�������6��
�
���"�-�#?� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����

�0��
��4������������4�����0��	�3�	�6�
�
����"�?� �0��3	�3��7�+���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	�+�1���4�����
7������4���07	�����
����	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�+�1��0�
37	��
��7	�	���	��
���0��	���4����7��7����������
�0�����205��	�+��0��8���7��7�����������0��
5���4��2�7�4��0��7497
����
����	87�����7	�76�
�����
0+��0��3	�3��7��
��3�����1��0�����
��
��%<�����0������������	
�#�8���3���������	���
��
7����7��(%&&$*6�

�
�

��2� *�
#�&2#���&���!�'�&(!�'�*�5���,*)-.)*��-
��0��
�
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7������733��
7������	����	�)��4�	���	��0��

07�2����������	���	��7���(����
�7����'*������>�4�	��7��@
7�������
(	��	��3�
��8�*6��
�
��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	����0	���)��4�	+��0��733��
7��6�
)��748���4��0��
����������07��0��074�5�������
7��	��2���	�%$�
��7	��7�4��07��0���1��0�074�7�17���5��������3���7�4���
7�������
���0���0������1�������	
6�)���>3�7���4��07��0���074�5����
���
��2���	�����75���3	���������	�'A�����0��5���074�5����
27C��3�4��7���������5���7����7��
07���6�)����7��4��07��0��
17��37�����7���75����
7��	��2�7�4�1���4���3������
7��3��3���
���0���5�������6�
�

Page 7



���5�	��
����4�	�4�10��0�	����17����
���7	�����
��4�������0��
�������0��5��������
���4��3�	7��6�"���
�	���>3�7���4��07���0���
4�4�����
����4�	��0�����
���7	��4������������
7�����7�4���3�����
����7�4����5�	��7

�3��4��0���748�
�6�
�
���"�-�#?� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����

�0��
��4������������4�����0��	�3�	�6�
�
����"�?� �0��3	�3��7�+���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	�+�1���4�����
7������4���07	�����
����	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�+�1��0�
37	��
��7	�	���	��
������0��8��7�����7�4�8�75������
����0��
����
���	��7�4��0����37
������0��

07	7
��	�7�4�733�7	7�
������0��
����	87�����
7	�76������
0��0��3	�3��7��
��3�����1��0��0��
3	�8�����������0���7����7����7����2�����
��
,	7��1�	
�7�4�����
�����<+��D�7�4�)�<����
�0������������	
�#�8���3���������	�����
7��
��7�6��

�
�

��6� **���$��&���&���!�'�&(!�'�)����
�,*)-.�*/)-
��0��
�
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7������733��
7������	����	�.���)7	2	�78���
��	��0���	�
��������7��1�����	���4��7
0�4�41�����2�����0����4�6�
�
"���
�	��3	�8�4�4�7���347�������0��733��
7����6��0���748���4�
�07�����	��59�
������074�5����	�
��8�4+���
��4��2��1���	�����
7��
	���4�����7�4��1�����5�07��������33��������74�����	�7��)7��6�
�0����	7���4�
��
�	����07���>�����2�37	
��2�3	�5���������0��
7	�7�1���4���
	�7��+��0�	��1���4�5��7������������!��	����37	
��2+�
7����
	�7��4�4��7�4���	���!��	����37	
��2�7�4�7

������	��7	2��
8�0�
����1���4�5����	��4����
���6�
�
"�������0��	���4�����7����	7���4�
��
�	���75�����0����������
�����20�@47���20��7�4��0���8�	���
��2����7497
����0������7�4�
27	4���6����744�����+����	����>7�4�	�074��59�
��4����5�07������7�
��
7��	���4���6�
�
���0�	�27	4����7

����7�4�37	
��2+�����
�	��748���4��07���0�������
����

�3��4�5��7����2���4������
�27	72��1��0�7���5��7�47	4�
4	�8�17���07����������0�	�����7

����47���7�37	
�4�
7	6��0��
8�0�
���
	����8�	�1���4�5��	���8�4�7��7�	����������0��
4�8���3�����7�4��0��7497
��������17�@
�	5��74��2��46��
�0�	���	���0�	��1���4�5���������
07�2������0��7���������
7	�

Page 8



37	
��2�787��75��6���0�������������1���4�5���0����
	�7�������0��
4��7�4���	�37	
��2�4�������0��
	�7���������0���>�	7+���4����(%!
5�4	���*�0����6���0����		���4��2�7	�7����������59�
�����7���
	���4�����37	
��2��
0���6��0��7497
����0�2017�����3	���
��4�5��
�>�����2�	���	�
���������
�����
7�������������	���07��8�0�
������1�
7�4�8���5������7	���7���7���46�����1�	
��7�72������
����4�	�
�07���0��
7	�37	
��2�7���
�7��4�1��0��0��3	�3���4�7�4��>�����2�
3	�3�	�����
7��5��7

����47��4���!��	����1��0����4��	�����7��
��37
�6�
�
"���
�	��748���4��07�����1�	
��7�72������078��7�
�4��07��
��7�47	4�
��4������)���'B�(	���87�����	�4��47���
	�����2*�5��
��
��4�4����3�7����2�3�	��������������5��2	7���4�7�4�
����	��4�
�07���0�����33�	��4��0���	�;����6�
�
"���
�	����7��4��07���0��
��������������33��������74�����	�7��
)7���078��7�
�4����1�	
��7�72���������
����4�	����	�4�
��2�
37	
��2�	���	�
�����������3�7	���	���+�7497
��������0��07��+�4������
�0����37
��7�4��7��	������0���	7���
�2���	7��4�5���0��07��=��
7
��8�����6��0��3	�3���4�	���	�
������4������733�7	����	��7������
�0���3�7����2�733��
7�����7���0��4�8���3�����1���4�����7���
��
�0���>�����2�7		7�2�������
�		���������3�7
������0���7	�76��0���
748���4��07������0��07���
���������1���4���
�����3�	�����0���
	�;������0����0���4�1	����������1�	
��7�72������7�4�7�
���	�
��3�7	���	�������5����
��4�4�����0��	�	�8��1����37	
��2�
	���	�
����������0��7	�76�
�
���0�	�27	4�������205��	�7������+�����
�	��748���4��07�������20��
7�4�47���20��1�	��
�8�	�4�����0��	�3�	�6����������0��3	�3���4�
1��4�1���7
���	����7�4�	�7	����1���4������8�	���
�7497
����
0�����6���0�������37	������0��0������07��
���4�
7����
�8�	���
��2�����0����4��17������5�4	����%6������������
�����07���0��
733��
7���1���4�����	��7�1��4�1�����0������87����6����8�	�0�����+�

��4������$�����0��	�3�	��1���4�3	�8������
0�7�	��
�5��	���8��2�
3�	�����4�4�8���3�����	�20�����	��>��	�7��7���	7�����6��
�
��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	����	�#78�4����������5�07���
�����33��������74�����	�7��)7�������59�
���������0��733��
7�����
4�������0����������37	
��2�7�4���
���0��4����744�����7��37	
��26�
)����7��4��07���8�	��0���7���%&���7	��0��074������7����
	�7������
�0�����5�	����
7	�������3�7	���	����7�4�"7
���	����7�4�37	
��2�
�����3�7	���	����074�5�
������	��4����
���6����0��20��7���
��
7��	���4�����17�
��	�
�
������1�	
+��0��	�8�0�
����7	����������
�0����	����4�	��2��0��47��7�4�4���8�	����		����078��3	�5�����
7

�����2��0����	���6�)����7��4��07��������07��5�����3����

Page 9



�32	74��2��0������	�7��07���7�4��07���0��07�������������	����
37	
��2������33�����������37	
��2����4��5����07���0���078�������
�����1��
���5��
��2��4������3	�5�����1��0�37	
��26�)��
�>3	����4��0��8��1��07���0��733��
7�����1���4�5��4��	�����7�����
�0��7�����������0��07���7�4�107��1����5����������''���3�7	���	���6�
�
���5�	������4��07���0��3����17����7���5���72	��4��07����	
�
���4�4���	����7�����7	��	�0����6��0���7

��1��42�4��07��
37	
��2�17��7��7�3	����������0���7	�7�7�4��0���4�8���3�����
1���4�3	�8�4���0�����4���	�������	�0�	�37	
��2��37
��5����07��
�0������4�4����5��57�7�
�4�727������0�����4���	��>�	7�0����6�
�0���4�4�����
����4�	��07���0���733��
7�����1���4�078��7����4���
����
������0������	�7��07��6��
�
���"�-�#?� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����7�

��
�����'&D��2	������+���59�
������0��

��4������������4�����0��	�3�	��7�4��0��
744�����7��
��4������5���16��

�
�44�����7�����4������
�0��4�8���3������07�������
�����
���������0��
�>�����2�8�0�
��7	�
	�����2������0�1��7��5���2�
	��7���4�����0��733	�8�4�3�7���07��5����
	���8�4�5��	�����7���2��0��
�	5�7�4�����17��
����7�
0�7497
������8���6��
�
��7���?�����0������	��������2��4��7�72������
����0��0�2017��7�4�	�74��7����6�

�
����"�?� �0��3	�3��7�+���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	��7�4��0��744�����7��
��4������
75�8�+�7�4��0����
�����'&D�72	������+�1���4�
����
7������4���07	���������	��������
7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�+�1��0�37	��
��7	�
	���	��
�����0�����2�3	�8�����+�8���7��
733�7	7�
�+�����4�	��
+����205��	�7������+�
����7��75�����+�
�
������	72��7�4�3	�8���������
�3����37
�6������
0��0��3	�3��7��
��3�����
1��0��0���7����7����7����2�,	7��1�	
�7�4�
3���
������'+���:7+���'&+���'$7+�):7+��:�
7�4��'
�����0������������	
���
7����7�6��

�
�
�
�

Page 10



���� ��&6�& !����"����������%���!�'�&(��,*)-.)�)*-
��0��
�
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7������733��
7������	����������3�	7������
������	��0��
07�2����������	���	��7���(������7����'*����
 7	@����7�	7���(������7����:@�<*6�
�
��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	���/7	����7�20+��0���1��	�
���/����4�=�� 7	�����59�
���������0��733��
7����6��0���>3	����4�

��
�	���75�����0����������	��7����������	����0��
����
���	�6��0��
��7��4��07��1��0�	�27	4�����0�����5�	����57	�+��0��E�7	��	�17��
7�	�74��7���7��	7�����3�����1��0�':�57	�+���������10�
0�1�	��
7�	�74����	���������4�	��	74��2�7�4�;��������4��0�����4���	�
7���0�	�57	+�10�
0��0���7�4�1���4�7������74����7����
	�7������
������7�4������	�3�������������0��7	�76��0��	7���4�
��
�	���07���0��
3�7���4�4�������
��4��4��7��������0���>�	7
������������10�
0�17��
7�8��7��37	������0��733��
7����6�
�
��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	�����
07	4���

��+��0��
�	
0���
�+������33�	������0��733��
7����6�)���>3�7���4��07���0��
�����074�5������3������
��%&'&�10��� �	4�	��
����4��7�4����
%&''��0�������17���3�����	����0��	��7�����������#78�27��6�����074�
5����
������7�����7	
���4�1��0������������	���6�)����7��4��07���0��
3	�3��7���1���4�
	�7���7�
7��@57	���	8��2�;�7��������4�7�4�
1���4�
	�7���7	���4�B$�9�5�6�)���>3�7���4��07���0��
��37���
074���0�	�57	����
��4��2��������)7		�27���7�4��0���4�8���3�����
1���4������1��0���7���4���2��7���0����0�	�6��)��748���4��0��
�����������07��0��074���7���4�1��0�����
�	��	�27	4��2��0��4���2��
7�4����733	�8�4+��0�����4��2�17�����3�7
��7�4��0��4�8���3�����
1���4���8����	17	4�����0����1���7	6�)��
����	��4��07���0�������
074���8�	�5�������4�7��7���7�4�7�����	��7�������6��
�
���0�	�27	4����
07�2��������+6����5�	��7

��1��42�4��07���0��
3	��
�3������
07�2���������074�5����7

�3��4�10����0��
����������074�2�8���3�	����������	�7�����0�
7�������0�������6�
�0����>3	����4��0���3�������07���0�	��17���������
07�
���07�����

���4��8�	�5�����4���	�	��7���7�4�
����4�	�4��0���17��7�����75���
7�4���72��7��8����������0��5���4��26��0�������4��07���0�	��1�	��
��0�	��>7�3��������0��
����10�	����	��	�
0�	
0���074�5����

��8�	��4������
7���@57	��7�4��0���3	�3��7��1���4�7���1�7�
4�	���
�������57

���������6��
�
���5�	��7

�3��4��07���0�	��1�	��7�	�74��7����5�	����57	�����
�0��7	�7�7�4�
��
�	����8�	��0������
�����	���4����7��7�������
7�4��0�������4��0��
�����2������������7	5��3	������6����0�
	�27	4����	���4����7��7������+�����
�	��4	�1����5�	��7���������

Page 11



���
��4�������:�(	���	�
�����������3����2����5������������5���*+�$�
(������������������7�����4�8�
������
���	�������
*�7�4�D�(
���	����
������������3����	���3�7���*����
���	����������	����0��3	������6��
�
����
����	������������8�4�7�4�����
����	��7�8�����
��4�4�7�
����������733	�8���0��733��
7�������59�
������0��
��4�������
	�
�����4�4�5������
�	�6��
�
����
����	��7�������8�4+�7�4�����
����	�.���	������
��4�4+�7��
7���4��������733	�8���0��733��
7�����5���1��0�7�
�����2���������
��4��20�����3	���
���0���7������������
7��	���4����6�"��5���2�3���
����0��8���+��0��7���4�����17������6��
�
���"�-�#?� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����

�0��
��4������������4�����0��	�3�	�6��
�
����"�?� �0��3	�3��7�+���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	�+�1���4�����
7������4���07	�����
����	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�+�1��0�
37	��
��7	�	���	��
������0��8��7���������0��
����

���	�+��0����37
������0�������4�5���4��2+��0��

07	7
��	�7�4�733�7	7�
������0��
����	87�����
7	�7�7�4��0��7������������		���4��2�
�

�37���6������
0��0��3	�3��7��
��3�����1��0�
����
����)�<+�)�:�7�4��D�����0������������	
�
#�8���3���������	�����
7����7�6��

�
�

��7� ��&6�& !����"����������%����'�&(�,*)-.)5�/-��
0��
�
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7��733��
7�������	������4�5���4��2�
�������
�	����������3�	7������������	�����	�7��7���	7��������
��4��2��0��
	�
����2�	7���������0����7�	
7���7���0���������4�7�4���7�	��3����
��CC7�������8��+����7	2����������>�����2��3����2��������0���7���
�37
�+�����7��7��������37	�������17����7�4�57	�(7��27���	����8��*�7�4�
	���87�����	7���4�����	�6��
�
"���
�	��748���4��07��
��������074�5����	�
��8�4��	�����2���0�
)�	��72��10��4�4������59�
������0��57	�75�8���0���	�2��7��
37�����4�27���	���	����3	�8�4�4��0���07�����7���
������0�����5�	�
37�����4�27���	��7�4��07���0��57	����	�8�	��5���������
7��5��
	���8�46���2���0�)�	��72��078��7�
�4��07��7�
��4���������
733���4����	�;��	��	���87������0��57	��������	������0��3	�������7	��
�������2�	����4�7��7�57	@	���7�	7��6��0��9������
7�������	��0��57	�
����07����������
���7	������7
���0��3	�3���4�����8�75��6�"���
�	��

Page 12



��22����4��07��7�
��4������
���4�5��744�4+�10�
0�1���4�	�;��	��
	���87������0��57	�����0��57	@	���7�	7�������1�	�����
�7��6�
"���
�	��
����	��4��07����2���0�)�	��72��4�4������59�
������0��
��7�	
7����5���7�
�4���	��0���'A�57�����	74�����5��	�!���4�
10�	��3����5�������0��F��
73����7�	G6��
�
"���
�	��	�
�����4�4�
��4������<�(�7	2���
7���4��7�������57	*�5��
7���4�4������
��4��
����	�
�����4��7�����������	���07���0��
����	�����
7���

�	�1��0����47�72��2@7���
���2��0���	�2��7��
���5�	�37�����4�27���	�6��
�44��7	2���
7���4��7����H��

•� �	�3���4���7�	
7����	����0��27���	������	�����0���33�	�
27���	�������
��4��07�4	7��+�57�����	��7�4���	��2�

•� ������
��47	��2�7C��2�
�
"���
�	��	�
�����4�4��07����1�
��4�������5��744�4����
�8�	�
�0������	��	���87�����57	�7�4��0��3	���
��������37������2�7	���4�
27���	����8��6�
�
���"�-�#?� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����

�0��
��4������������4�����0��	�3�	��7�4��0��
7���4�4�7�4�744�����7��
��4�������5���16�

�
����4�4����4������<�
�7	2���
7���4��7��������0�������������4�5���1�
�07���5����5�����4����7�4�733	�8�4����1	����2�
5���0����
7����7����2����0�	����3	��	�����0��

�����
����������0��4�8���3�����7�4��0��
1�	
���07���5��
7		��4��������7

�	47�
��1��0�
�0��733	�8�4�4��7���6�

�
7*����1�57	�7����	�������	���8����0�1�����
����>�+�
10�
0��07���4������	7����0������	�����
7���7
��
3�7
��1��0����47�72��2@7���
���2��0���	�2��7��
37�����4�27���	�6��#��7���������
��4���0��
	��7�����0�3�5��1�����0��57	�7�4��0��2�7C�4�
�
	����7�4�57����	74��7����	�������	���8��+�

����
�����3��������	��0��2�7C�4�17���4��3�7��
7�4��������4��7���6���

�
5*���7�	
7����	����0��27���	������0���33�	�����	�
27���	��(��CC7�������8��*�!������
��4��7�8�	��
7��

	������
������0	��20�10�
0���
��4����0��
07�4	7��+�57�����	��7�4���	��26�
�

Page 13




*�������
��47	��2�7C��2�3	�3���46�����
��
��4����4�
7��8��
	������
������7��7��
7������
'?'&6�

�
��7���?������0������	���������0��733�7	7�
�����
�0�������4�5���4��26�

�
�44�����7�����4������
�0��27���	����8���57	�����	������07���5��������
	���8�4�7�4�7	�7���74��2��4�7���0�������7��
10�
0��0������0�	�5��733	�8�4�
�7���6�

�
��7���?�����0��57	�
7�����������07��
��5��7���7��07	������0����2����
7�
������0��
0�	��72��7�����7�4����1����5��4���2��4�7��7�
	�8�	��5�����7��	�6�������
0�10������5�
�����
	�4��47�������	���87�����4���	75��+����	����	��
�0��7	
0���
��	7��7�4�0����	�
���3�	�7�
������0��
�����4�5���4��26�

�
�44�����7�����4������
�	���
��������37������2�7	���4�27���	����8��?���
1	�������
0�4�������3	���
�������7��	�����	�
�0�����5�	�37������2�7	���4��0��27���	��4�	��2�

����	�
������07���5����5�����4�7�4�733	�8�4�
5���0����
7����7����2����0�	����3	��	����

�����
���������
����	�
�����7�4��0��1�	
��
�07���5��
7		��4��������7

�	47�
��1��0��0��
733	�8�4��
0�4���6���0�����5�	�37������2��07���
	��7���7���>�����2+�����37����4@
�7��4����7���
17�6�
�
��7���?����3	���
���0���3�
�7��7	
0���
��	7��
7�4�0����	�
�����	��������0��5���4��26�
�

����"�?� �0��3	�3��7�+���59�
������0��
��4������������4�
����0��	�3�	��7�4��0��7���4�4�7�4�744�����7��

��4�������75�8�+�1���4�����
7������4���
07	���������	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�+�
1��0�37	��
��7	�	���	��
������0����37
������0��
�����4�5���4��26�������
0��0��3	�3��7��
��3�����
1��0�����
��)�:�����0������������	
�
#�8���3���������	�����
7����7�6��

�
�

Page 14



��%� �����&�6" ������
"1�!��.�8���%���!�'�&(!�'�*�/�+��
,*)-.�)/�-
��0��
�
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7������733��
7�����5������7	74����#�����5��
��	��0����������0��0�2017����	��75����7�4�
07�	�������	8�����
�7	74����#�����5��7�4��0������7��7��������,	��
0�4��	��7�4�7�

7��3������0����4�6��
�
"���
�	��748���4��0��
����������07��7���	�0�	�	�3	�����7�����074�
5����	�
��8�4����5�07�������0��4�	�
��	�+��1��	��7�4�	���4�����
����0��5��

������7���
��1��7��'!D�#�>�����7	4��>3	�����2��0��	�
�59�
������7�4�	7����2��0�������1��2�3�����?��
�

•� "���
�	��4�4�������33�	����7���2�7	�7�7����������3	�!
733��
7�������;��	������7��%&'%6�

•� ��
�		�
������	�7������	���733��
7����	�27	4��2�����7��7�����
���,	��
0�4��	�

•� ��37
��������������	���4����������7���H���37
�����75���������
������7���7�4�7���
���7���87�����

•� "8�	4�8���3�����H����5�	����
������	��7	������2	�7����	�
��C�����3	�������

•� �������H�
�����3	�>���������	������7	�7������7���2�7	�7�
	�3	�������7�0�7��0�07C7	46� ����7	��	�2��7	����8�	���1��26��

•�  ����078����1�5������8�4�7�4�3��������4�����0��
378������	���	�
���2���8�������������37�06��

•� ��7���2�����7��27���H�7	�7�����	�������3	�3�	���074�5����
���4�7��7�378������
7�����	���7	�+�10�
0���������7��6�
�75����078��	�
������5����	���8�46��

•� ,�	���7�����H���7��������
73��7	��
�		������

��3	�����4+�7�����4��75��4�7

����

•� ��
��
����	��7������7�
�0���4���������>���4���������4�����
	���7�	7�����74��2����5	�7
0������
��
��5����	8��2�7�
�0���
����	������3	������6�

•� ������3��������7�
�0�������0����	�����!�����7�
���	�����
7��
4	��
���

�
���5�	��7

��1��42�4��0��3	�5�����	�27	4��2�	������5���
1�	��748���4��07��7���0���17������
��4������4�����0���	�2��7��

07�2���������733��
7����+����
���4�����5��
����4�	�4�7��37	�����
�0���733��
7����6�
�
��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	����	� 7	���+��0��72�������
��33�	������0��733��
7����6�)���>3�7���4��07���0�������4����7���2�
7	�7+�
��3	����2��1���75���+�17����
����4�5��57		��	��1��0�7�

7��3���8�	�����0��
����	������0����7��7����726��0��3�	3��������0���

Page 15



7	�7�17����	�3��3������5��75����������7�4�078��7�4	��
�10�����0���
1�	��17����2���	�7��75������5�
����787��75�������4���0��
	���7�	7��6�)����7��4��07��������37
�����	���4����7��7�������17��

���	����4�5���3�
����4�0��	������3�	7�����1��0��0�������4��7	�7�
���5��87
7��4�5��I6:$3����������7��7�4�5��B6:$3�����
���47���7�4��������
����5��3�7��4������4�6�)��7���	�4�
���5�	���07���0��3	�3��7���1���4�078�����748�	�����37
�����
	���4����7��7������6�)��
����	��4��07���0	���5���+�10�
0�1�	��
74�;�7�����	��0�����4������0��	���7�	7��+��1�	����1�37	
�4�5��
�0��17��6�
�
���"�-�#?� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����

�0��
��4������������4�����0��	�3�	�6��
�
����"�?� �0��3	�3��7�+���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	�+�
7����������4���07	�����
����	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�+�1��0�
37	��
��7	�	���	��
������0��8��7�����7�4�8�75������
����0��
����
���	�+��0��8���7��7�������7�4�

07	7
��	�����0��
����	87�����7	�7+�0�2017��
�7�����7�4�	���4����7��7������6������
0+��0��
3	�3��7��
��3�����1��0�����
�����D+��B+�)�<+�
�%7+���'�7�4���'A�����0������������	
�
#�8���3���������	�����
7����7��(%&&$*J�7�4�
�7����7��3�7����2�2��47�
��
���7���4�����0��
�7����7����7����2�����
��,	7��1�	
6��

�
�

��#� )�9�*���"22�6"��3!�'�&(��,*)-.�*��-
��:0��
�
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7��79�	������733��
7�����('<�1��
�*��	����	�
7�4��	�����	707����	��0��
07�2�������������>�����2�2	���4�
����	�	��7���������(����
�7����'*�������>�5����'+�%+��<��	��:����+�

07�2��������������	��	��0�����17��)������(����
�7����'*����
	���4����7��(����
�7����<*������	��':�737	������+�7����	��+���
��4�
7�4��0�	4�����	���8��+��>��	�7���>�������������0��	�7	�7�4���4�+�7��
��	���7�4���
��4�����	���8���7�4�7���
�7��4�1�	
�6��
�
��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	���)7		���371���+��0��72����
�����33�	������0��733��
7����6�)��748���4��0��
����������07���0��
733��
7����������1�4���2����
7���3	��733��
7�����4��
��������1��0�
����
�	��7�4���
7��	���4����6�����59�
������074�5����	�
��8�4�
7�4��0���074��0����33�	���	�����	
���8�
��	���6�)��
����	��4�
�07���0��3	�3���4������7

�	4�4�1��0��0����
7��4�8���3�����

Page 16



3�7��7�4��7����7��3���
��2��4�������7�4����1���4�7���1�7�5���4��2�
10�
0�074��7��87
7�����	�%&���7	�����5��5	��20��57

���������6��
�
���5�	���>3	����4��0��	��������33�	����	��0��3	�3��7��6��0���
	7���4��0�����������57���1��0��0�������	���4��"���
�	�10��17��
3	������7���0��������26�)���
����	��4��07��7�57����	8���074�
5����
7		��4�����10�
0���4�
7��4�7���7���3������7��	���������0��
�����5���748���4��07���0��1�	
��1���4�����7���
���0��	������	��0��
���	7�
�������6���7����2�����
�	��4	�1����5�	��7������������

��4������%&�5���
����	��4��07���0�	��17��������4���	�7�
3	���
��4��3�
������
��
�6�
�
���"�-�#?�� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����

�0��
��4������������4�����0��	�3�	�6��
�
����"�?� �0��3	�3��7�+���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	�+�1���4�����
7������4���07	�����
����	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�+�1��0�
37	��
��7	�	���	��
������0����37
������0��

����	87�����7	�7+��0��8��7�����7�4�8�75���������
�0��
����
���	�+�7������+��3�
����3	���
��4�5��
�71�7�4�0�2017���7����6������
0��0��3	�3��7��

��3�����1��0�����
������'+���'%+���'D+�
)�<+�):7+���D+��<7+��D+��'
�7�4��#:�����0��
����������	
�#�8���3���������	�����
7����7�6�

�
�

�5�� ���	�����	�
��:��
	������	
��������::���	���
�
���5�	��	�
��8�4�7�	�3�	��10�
0�����	��4��0�������0��
����
��=��3�	��	�7�
�����	��7��������733�7���4���	����4�5���0��
��7����2����3�
��	7����	���'����3	������<'�"
��5�	�%&'%�7�4�
3	�8�4�4�7�����7	������0���7������3�������	���733�7���
4���	����4�����07��3�	��46�
�
���"�-�#?� �07���0��
�����������0��	�3�	��5������46�
�
����"�?� ����07�����5�	��
7��5��
�3������	��4����

733�7���4���	����4�5���0����7����2�
���3�
��	7��6�

�
�
�
����
����	� ��7����+��07�	�
K�0��������2���7	��4�7��<6&&�3��7�4������0�4�7��:6<&�3�L6�

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



����������	
�����
��� ������������������

�������� ���������������������������������
�� !�"��������

#���� $%�&�������'%$(�

�������� �"������"�������"��)�*���+,�
-������,����.��,���������).���!�*���+,�
&�--����,��""/��,�"��������#�
��������

��"�"����� �"������"�����#�

�
���� ����	
������
����	���

�0�������1��2�������1�	�����3�
��4�5���	���0��������26�
�
����� �����4�4�5�� ��7������	�.�����
�7��	�-7	�����7
��
�7����
7���	�
�7�5���
�

����
����	���7�8��,�
��������7�4��7�����

����59�
������074�
5����	�
��8�4�7�4�
�0������
�	�
	�
�����47�����
17�����733	�8�6�

':;� ��0�3�0�	3��
��74�
�

����
����	���7�8��,�
��������7�4��7�����

����59�
������074�
5����	�
��8�4�7�4�
�0������
�	�
	�
�����47�����
17�����733	�8�6�

�����4���,�
���	��7��8�����

����
����	���7�8��,�
��������7�4��7�����

����59�
������074�
5����	�
��8�4�7�4�
�0������
�	�
	�
�����47�����
17�����733	�8�6�

�7	��7	
��2��	�7,�
*��27�����74�

����
����	���7�8��,�
��������7�4��7�����

����59�
������074�
5����	�
��8�4�7�4�
�0������
�	�
	�
�����47�����
17�����733	�8�6�

$<�#�1�5�	��
��		7
��

����
����	���7�8��,�
��������7�4��7�����

����0��	�=�����������	�
 	�7���7����6�

-���47�����
*�����2,� �1���
��		����*����,�$$$�
�7��27���
�

����
����	���7�8��,�
��������7�4��7�����

����0��	�=�����������	�
 	�7���7�����

Page 19



'�����47�� ����
����	���7�8��,�
��������7�4��7�����

����59�
������074�
5����	�
��8�4�7�4�
�0������
�	�
	�
�����47�����
17�����733	�8�6�

�
���� �	
�����������
����	�	����

����0���3���������0��������2,����5�	��1�	��7�
�4����4�
�7	��7���
3�	���7�,�3	�9�4�
�7���	�4��
���75���3�
���7	������	������0���
��20��078������0��5������������0��72��476��������	�����1�	��
4�
�7	�46�
�
�

���� 	�
��������
���	������������
��
���"�.�#>� �07���0�����5�	������0���	����7�4���5��
�5��

�?
��4�4��	����0��������2�4�	��2��0��

����4�	7���������0��7���?�������2��47������;�
)����	
�������7�����347��+�����0��2	���4��
�07���0���
���7�������	�7������07�����4��
����4�
����0��3�5��
,�1���4�	�8�7���07���0�����0�	����
3	�3��������2�8�,���4�	�7�����7
�������	�
����
��5��8�	�������10�
0�	�=��	�������7	��
��3���4����7�3�	�����	��07���0�����0�	����
3	�3���������7
��7���	4�	��	�4�	�
��8����4�	�
7�����7
�����6��0�������	�7��������
�7���4�7��
�?��3����4�	��7	72	730�;�����
0�4����$'�����
��
�����$%%������0����
7����8�	�������
��
$:@',�7��7���4�4�5���0����
7����8�	������
)�

�����������	�7����+�).7	�7����+�"	4�	�
'%%;6��

�
�

���� �����	���
���"�.�#>� �07���0��������������0��������2�����0�������

7�4����������	���	�7���7����2���5!����������
0��4����$<���8��5�	�'%$'�5��733	�8�4�7�4�
��2��4�5���0���07�	�7��7�
�		�
��	�
�	46�

�
�

���� �����
������
���������
���17��	�3�	��4��07���0�	��074�5�������	�2���	7����������3�7
�
��4�	�����
��A����5��
��7	��
�37������
0�������2���	7���������
1��0����0��	���������0�����������6�
�
�

Page 20



�
�
�

���� ������������
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7��
0�4�������	�3�	�������0��������7���
#�	�
��	�)��7����2�7�4�����7��75���#�8���3����+�	��7���2�����0��
�����1��2�3�7����2�733��
7�����,���������2��0��3	�3��7���7�4�
	���87���3���
��
����4�	7������7�4�������2������0��8��1��7�4�
748�
�����
����������7�4�����
�	�6�
�

���� ��������� ��!!"#����$���� �%!"& �%���������
'��(���)�(
��*��
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7������733��
7������	����	���
�����	����	�
�0���	�
��������7�41�����2�)	���5�������+6�
�
"���
�	��
�	
��7��4�7�30���2	730�10�
0�074�5�����7
���7���0��
�����8�����10�
0��0�1�4��0���������4�	�17��	6�
�
��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	����	������	8����,�7�
���205��	,�����59�
���������0��733��
7����6��0��	7���4��0��
�����1��2�������>�

•� ����4��2����7��79�	�������1��0��0�������B��0�	������������
����	�7���������0��733��
7��������0�1���	�7
��17��	�
4	7��72��1���4�5��4�7���1��06��

•� �0�������9�������4����4���2��3�	7�0�	��07��5���4��2���6���
•� �0��3	�3���4����
������0��4	�8�17��1���4�5������20����
7�4��������8��������
�7���	���0�	���8��2�	����B����1���4�
7����7���
����20������0���	���6��

•� �0����1�0�����1���4�5��8���5���7�4��8�	5�7	��2�10���
8��1�4��	���0�	�3	�3�	����

�
���5�	��72	��4��07����	�7
��17��	�4	7��72��17��7��������7�4�
�07��1��0������	�0�	�����	�7�����	�27	4��2��0��,��0��733��
7�����
�0���4�����5��733	�8�46��
�
���"�.�#>� �07���0��733��
7�����5��	�����46��
�
����"�>� �������
���������	�7�����07��5������5�����4�

1��0��0��3	�3��7�������	�������75���0��07���0��
�����
7��5���7�����7�4���
�	����4	7���4�1��0����

7����2��7��	�7��07	������0����	�������
	�7��4�
����4�	��
���	����205��	��2�3	�3�	������7
��2�
7

���������0����2����
7���7�4�4������	75���
��	�7
��17��	�4	7��72��3	�5�����7���0������,�

���	7	��5��0�����0����	����������
����$<7+����

Page 21



�0����	
�#�8���3���������	�����
7����7��7�4�
����	7����8�	��������7����2�����
�����	��3�
��
�����7����2�7�4�-���4����
��������4�����0��
�7����7����7����2�����
��-	7��1�	
�
37	72	730�$%(6�

�
��+� 
�"���"&,�-��"�� �.!#-�/���!�� �%!"&�'��(�����(
��*��

���5�	��
����4�	�4�7������733��
7������	����?3�	�7��
#�8���3��������4���	��0���	�
��������7�(����	���5��

����;���6�
737	������6�
�
"���
�	��748���4��07����

��27�����7����2��7����074�	��3��4�4�
����0��
������7�����7�4�074�����59�
����������0��733��
7����6�
*�1�8�	�7���	�0�	����	��59�
������074�5����	�
��8�4��	���
���5�	��C'�7�4�C;��0��������7�4�(D�7�4�;:�*��27�����74�
10�
0�	7���4��0�������1��2�
��
�	��>�
�

•� ���������
�� ����4�������74������0���
0����4������744	����

��
�	����8�	��0����E������0��3	�3���4�5���4��2�7�4�
������37
��������205��	�6��0��5���4��2�1���4�5��
�8�	!5�7	��2�7�4����1���4���74�����8�	!�074�1��2�
7�4�����������20�6�)�0��5���4��2�1���4�5��(!���	�����
1��0���$D�����C'���C;��0�������+6��

�� �0������
���7��C;�7

����47���7���	����
��3��
0�
7�4�7
�����
���75�	7��	�6���	
���8��8����0��4��7���4�
7�7���������	�
�	4�4�����4�7�4�
��8�	�7�������	�

	����7����8����27�����7�4�9�4�
�7��3�	3����6����79�	�
37	������0������7����
7	�������������2����7�=�����7
�����
�
�75�	7��	����8�	������6��0��������2���	7��4�4�	��2�
�0��4�8���3���������0�������1���4�
7������5��7���7��
4��	�3���������0��5�������6��

�
•� #���2��!������
������������0��
����	87���������
�	��07��
�0���	�������87�����1���4�5��F�����3�	��2A6��0������1�	����4�
5����
	�7���2��0��1�4�0�����0��8�0�
���7

���6��

�
•� *�2017���7������

�� ���37	
��2���	�����	��	���4������	�8�����	�����
��7

�3�75��6��0���79�	�������0����0��4��2���	7����
	�=��	�������37	
��2�3	�8������7�4���������	�7�����
����
�?3�
��7�4�8���3���������3�	7���1��0�����37
����	�
	���4����,�8�����	���	���	8�
��26��
�

Page 22



�� .���5������7��7

������74�=�7���)���������	
�����
������
�����������
�������	��
	�����������	
��
������
	�������
��
�����
��	����

•� ��	8�
��2��
�

�� ��	8�
��2�8�0�
����1���4�5����75������7

�����0��
�����)17����
����
�������	��?7�3��+6��0�����07��
7��
7	����
����������0�	�5��

��0��7

���������78��8�0�
����
5���2���75��������78���0����������7���	17	4�2�7	6��
�
����������	
�����
���������
������
���
�����
������
	�
�������������
���
�������
�
�����
���
��
����
	������

�����
	
�������
���	���	�����
��	�
	�
�������
�
��
��
		�	��� ��
������
 ���	
���
���
��
����
�����
���

	������
���
�������

�
•� ��	�=�7�����B��0����������1��0����0��7�	�=�7������7�72������
7	�7�B��0��4�8���3�����1���4�1�	�����0��7�	�=�7�������	�
�?�����2�	���4����,�5��744��2�����0����
����4��7��	������0��
��	���6���������22����4��07��7�	�=�7�����07��1�	����4�����0���
37	��
��7	�7	�7�4�������0��	�!��
7���������0���	7���
���20��6����
���744�4�����0���7����59�
����������	��07�����1���4�5���7�8��
���078��7�
7	��	���	���4����7��4�8���3���������0�����
7����6�
�

��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	�������
����	��������,��7	4�
���5�	���	���

��27����7	4,�10��074�
7���4�����0��733��
7�����
��	�4���	���7�����5��
���������4������
��
�	����8�	��0���
7���
����0��3	�3���4�4�8���3�����7�4��0����37
������0��7����������
��		���4��2��

�37���6��0���?3�7���4��07���0��074�8�����4��0��
�����7�4�074�5�������4�7��2���1��0�	���4�����	�27	4��2��0��
3	�3��7��6��0���?3	����4�
��
�	���	�27	4��2��0��3�7����2�
3	�
����7�4�1��0��0��4�8���3�	�7�4��74���0�������1��2�3�����6�
�

•� �7

����
����4�	7�����07��5����2�8�������0�������4�
5���4��2��7���0��57

�����0������6��

•� "	�2��7��3	�3��7���1�	���������37�0���
����7	�7�B��0����
7	���������������37�0���
�

•� �������
7�����B�3�7����0�1����
�		�
������3	����
•� #�8���3��������	�4�
���7�4�2	�������8�	���
��2�
•� �7��	���	����078��5����	���8�4�1��0����
�������B��0����
3	�8�4�4��
	�����2�B�	���4�����078��	�=�����4��	����7	��
	�3�7���4�7���2��0��5���47	��17��6�

•� �������1��0��0��4	7����
�
�

Page 23



��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	�������	�-	��
0,�7�9������1��	�
���5��������3	�������7��C;��0�������,�7��1�����	���5���4��2�
57

��2�������0������,�7�4��1��	�����0����7��0��4�������	�����0��
37	
��2��37
��6�*��	7���4��0�������1��2�
��
�	��>�

•� �	�87
��7�4�"8�	�074�1��2�B��0��5��
�7�4�0��20������0��
5���4��2�1���4���74����3	�5���������8�	���
��2������	�
1��4�1��7�4�����������20������0��57

������	�5���4��2�7�4�
�7	46��

•� ��74�=�7���37	
��2�B���������3�	7��8���07��74�=�7���
3	�8����������74����	�37	
��2����8�0�
����5����2��2����
	���4��������3	�3���4���7��6��0��3	�8���������E�	���37
���
3�	�	���4���������	�7�����
6�

•� .���5�������3�7��7�����	7�
��������
���	78�������1��0�
���
���
3���
�6�

�
��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	������8�� �	��,�7���
7��
	���4�������*��27��6�*��	7���4�
��
�	���	�27	4��2�37	
��2�7��
�����1�>�

•� �87��75���������37	
��2�!��������7�8������?3�
���07���0���1��	��
����0����1���7���1��������078��
7	��7�4�8�����	������0����7���
�7��078��
7	�����6�������7�	�74��7�
����7���57�������	���
7��
	���4�����������4��37
������37	
��0��	��1��
7	������0��
	���4�����37	
��2�E����6��0�	����������	���37
�6���

•� �7�����!�7���0��
7	�37	
����0�44���5�0��4��0��7	
0,�8�����	��
1���������	�7������07���0�	��������	�������37	
��0��	�
7	�
��
���0���078��4	�8�����6�����0�	��������	���������	��
7	���4��0���1���4�078�����	�8�	���57

������0	��20��0��
7	
0������7�5����	�746�

�
��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	���&�0��*�1����,�7�3�7����2�

������7���7
���2����5�07�������0��733��
7��6�*���74���0��
�����1��2�
�������>��

•� �0��4�8���3��������
7	��	���!��0�����������1��0��0������A��
��
7���������0��
����
���	��1��0�7���������
�����7��07�4�B�

7	��	���4�8���3������7	�����������7�������	
6�

•� ����������
7��4����7�
����	87�����7	�76��
•� �����37
������0��3	�3�	�������0��7������������
7��
�

�3��	��B�	�7	�27	4������4�����4�5��7�'��17���B�

����4�	���0���	��7�����0�3����5��7

�3�75��6�

�
���	��3��������7�=��������5���0���07�	,��	�*�1�����72	��4��07�����
1���4�5��3����5�������	�
��7���2�������4���0��7	
017�����748����
3��3����0�	��17�����37	
��2�787��75��6��
�

Page 24



"���
�	��
����	��4��07���0�	��17�������
������37
�������	��7�
7	�
	���4�����0��37	
��2�7	�7����7��������	��4�������������0�	��17��
���	�7����10���0���
���4�A������	�7�4���78����	17	4�6�
�
���5�	��7

�3��4��07��7

����47���������0�����3��17��
���4�4�����0��
����7�4�7

��1��42�4��0�����4������
��	72��
3��3��������������8�0�
����5����07���0���074����5��57�7�
�4�
727�����
07�2�������0����	�����
���6�"������5�	���7��4��0��
17����
����	�75���75����5���4��2���	������5�4���7���7���0���
�7���4����744	�����0����	7��2�
�0�����2����4��7���������6��
�
���"�.�#>� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����7�

��
�����$%;�72	������,��0��
��4������������4����
�0��	�3�	��7�4��0��744���������7������	�7��8��
7�
��2��0��733��
7��������	�
��7���2��7���0��
���	7�
������0��7	
0��������	��3��3����07�����
37	
��2����787��75�����	��0����7��6�

�
����"�>� �0��3	�3��7�,���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	�,�1���4�����
7������4���07	�����
����	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�,�1��0�
37	��
��7	�	���	��
������0����37
�����0�	��72��
7�����,�	���4����7��7�������7�4�0�2017��
�7����6������
0��0��3	�3��7��
��3�����1��0�
����
����*�',�*�(,�*�$%,���$7�4�*D7�����0��
����������	
�#�8���3���������	�����
7����7�6�

�
��0� �#!/��1 �2"��/��!"/3�4�� ���/3�"��!55#�/!� �%!"&��

'��(�����(�	��*��
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7�	���	8�4��7���	��733��
7������	����	�
�7		�� 7	
�	���	�733	�87�����7

���,�733�7	7�
�,��7�4�
73��2,�
�7�����7�4��
7������4�8���3����������20����4���	�7�G���	72��7�4�
4���	�5������������) $,� '�7�4� C�������7��+������1��2�3	�8�����
733	�87�������������733��
7�����%;G%%<$CG-������'(6$%6'%%;6�
�
"���
�	��748���4��07��	�8���4�3�7���074�5������5�����4�10�
0�
�0�1�4�7���	7����������0���7�4�
73��2��
0���6���5��=�����

��������078��5����	�
��8�4��	����0�������7�4�
73��
"���
�	,��0�������
���2��"���
�	,�7�4��7����7���	�4���7���2��0���
078������59�
����������0���
0���6������
0,��0��1�	4��2����
���4������$�074�5����	�8���4�����7
��7

������	��0��	�8���4�
3�7���7�4�7��744�����7��
��4������
�8�	��2��7�4�
73��2�1���4�
���4����5��744�46�
�

Page 25



�0��733��
7��,��	��7	�� 7	
�	,�17��3	������7���0��������2�7�4�
074�72	��4����7��1�	�7���=������������5�	��074�5��������
1�	��3�����	17	46��
�
���"�.�#>� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����

�0��
��4������������4�����0��	�3�	��7�4��0��
7���4�4�7�4�744�����7��
��4�������5���16�

�
����4�4����4������$�
��0��4�8���3�����0�	�5��3�	�����4��07���5��

7		��4��������7

�	47�
��1��0��0�������1��2�
3�7��>!��

•� #	71��2����5�	>��	�3���4��������7��
��%( �	�
��8�4�'�&7��7	��'%$(��

•� #	71��2����5�	>��7�4�
73��2���7��
��%@ �	�
��8�4�'�&7��7	��'%$(��

•� #	71��2����5�	>����87������������$!;�
��%<�	�
��8�4�$%�"
��5�	�'%$'��

•� #	71��2����5�	>�������@!C���%;��
	�
��8�4�$@�#�
��5�	�'%$'H��

�
��7���>�-�	��0��78��47�
�����4��5��7�4����
����	���07���0��4�8���3��������
7		��4�����
�����7��733	�8�4�5���0����
7����7����2�
���0�	���6�

�
�44�����7�����4������
�0��733	�8�4��7�4�
73��2��
0����)#	71��2�
���5�	��7�4�
73��2���7����%@ �	�
��8�4�'�
&7��7	�+��07���5����3�������4�1��0���7�3�	��4�
�����?�����0������0��
��3�����������0��
4�8���3����6������	�����	�3�7����10�
0�1��0���
7�3�	��4������8����7	���	����0��
��3����������
�0��4�8���3�����4��,�7	��	���8�4��	�5�
����
��	�������47�72�4��	�4���7��4��07���5��
	�3�7
�4�����0����?��3�7����2���7����1��0�
��0�	�����7������7	���E��7�4��3�
���,��������
7���	�7��8���7	��72	��4����1	����2�5���0����
7��
��7����2����0�	���6��
�
��7���>�-�	��0��78��47�
�����4��5��7�4����
����	���07���0��4�8���3��������
7		��4�����
�����7��733	�8�4�5���0����
7����7����2�
���0�	���6�

Page 26



����"�>� �0��3	�3��7�,���59�
������0��
��4������������4�����0��
	�3�	��7�4��0��7���4�4�7�4�744�����7��
��4������
75�8�,�1���4�����
7������4���07	���������	��������
7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�,�1��0�37	��
��7	�	���	��
��
��������2,�7

���,�733�7	7�
�,��7�4�
73��2,��7����,�
7�4��
7��6������
0��0��3	�3��7��
��3�����1��0�
����
������$,��D,���:�����0������������	
�
#�8���3���������	�����
7����7�H�7�4��7����7��
3�7����2�2��47�
��������������0���7����7����7����2�
����
��-	7��1�	
6�

�
���� 
!����/,!��.!�6,�-��!7�6 ��!""�##�.!�6� �����4�#8-�/� �

%!"& �%�������'��(��9�1(��
*��
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7��733��
7�������	������4� ���4��2���������
�	����������������7����	�����	�7��7���	7��������
��4��2�
	�3�7
���������37	�������17�������2	���4�����	,���������?�����2�
�3����2����	�7	�7�4�����7��7����������	8��2�07�
0������	�������	6�
�
"���
�	��748���4��07����2���0�*�	��72��074�
����	��4��07���0���
074�����59�
����������0��3	�3��7��6���	��3�����074�7����5����
	�
��8�4��	����0������407�����7����2��7����10��074�	7���4�

��
�	���75�����0��I�����74��2��7��	������0��733��
7����J�7�4�
�?3	����4��0��8��1��07�����17��7����733	�3	�7�����������0��
0����	�
�5���4��26��
�
���5�	��7

��1��42�4��07���0���074�����4����5�����
�7�����8�����
�0�������7�4�����4��07�������	�
��	7��1�	
�17�����5��
7		��4����6�
�0���72	��4��07�����1���4�5��7��7

�3�75�����������0��5���4��2�
10�
0�1���4�7���1��0��5���4��2����	��7���������6�
��
���"�.�#>� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����

�0��
��4������������4�����0��	�3�	�6�
�
����"�>� �0��3	�3��7�,���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	�,�1���4�����
7������4���07	�����
����	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�,�1��0�
37	��
��7	�	���	��
������0����37
������0��
7������,��3�
�7��7	
0���
��	7��7�4�0����	�
�
����	��������0���	74����K������4�5���4��26����
��
0,��0��3	�3��7��
��3�����1��0�����
��*�D����
�0������������	
�#�8���3���������	�����
7��
��7���)'%%<+�7�4��7����7��3�7����2�2��47�
��

���7���4�����0���7����7����7����2�����
��
-	7��1�	
�)'%$'+6�

�

Page 27



���� �1���76+�"����""�0� �%!"& �%���9.��'��(�����(
��*��
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7������733��
7������	����	���5�	����
����	�
7����2������	�����4���?�������������1��2��0��4�������������7��
�?�����2�
7	�3�	�6�
�
���"�.�#>� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����

�0��
��4������������4�����0��	�3�	�6�
�
����"�>� �0��3	�3��7�,���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	�,�1���4�����
7������4���07	�����
����	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�,�1��0�
37	��
��7	�	���	��
������0��733�7	7�
������0��
�����4�5���4��2,�
����	87�����7	�7,�7�4�
	���4����7��7������6������
0��0��3	�3��7��

��3�����1��0�����
������$,�*@,�*�(�7�4�*�D�
����0������������	
�#�8���3���������	�����
7��
��7��7�4��0��L���4������?���������7�4�
7���	7���������3	�87���41�����2�0�����L�
��33������7	����7����2����47�
�6�

�
�

��:� �1���76+�"����""�0� �%!"& �%���9.��'��(�����(��
*��
���5�	��
����4�	�4�7��733��
7�������	������4� ���4��2���������
�	����	���5�	����
����	�����	�7��7�4��?��	�7��7���	7������
��
��4��2�7����2������	�����4���?�������6�
�
���"�.�#>� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����

�0��
��4������������4�����0��	�3�	�6�
�
����"�>� �0��3	�3��7�,���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	�,�1���4�����
7������4���07	�����
����	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�,�1��0�
37	��
��7	�	���	��
������0���3�
�7������	�������
�0�������4�5���4��26������
0��0��3	�3��7��

��3�����1��0�����
������$�7�4�*�D�����0��
����������	
�#�8���3���������	�����
7����7��
7�4��0��L���4������?���������7�4�7���	7���������
3	�87���41�����2�0�����A���33������7	��
��7����2����47�
�6�

�
��-� �����#�
�:� ���������# �%!"& �%���;���'��(��;��(
��*��

���5�	��
����4�	�4�7������733��
7������	����	�/7�7�7�4��	�
 	�������	�7�
07�2��������������	
�����=�������	��)��7����$+�
���	���7�	7���)������7����(+�1��0�����7��7���������0	���
��4����	�
������7���0��	�7	6�

Page 28



�
���0�	�27	4�����0���?�	7
�����������,�"���
�	��748���4��07��

��������074�5����	�
��8�4��	����0����8�	������7��
�	���
�������������	��7��������7������	�7��7�����7������������1��0�
7��7�	����7
��7�4����3���8�7����8	�4��3����2������?�����2�
1��4�1������0����4�����87������7
��2��0����4��37��72�17��
5��1�����0���	74�7���7�4�M�E�A�6��0���	�8���4��������1���4�
	�3�7
���0���	�2��7����3	�3���4��?��	�7���?�	7
��������������0��
��4�����87�����37	7���������0���?�����2��������	�M�E�A�6�
�
"���
�	��
����	��4��07���0����8�	������7���	���
����������1���4�
��33�	���0��0�20���8�����������3	���	��
������0��	�8���4�����	�7��
���������	�7������,�����
���
��7�4�
����	�7����6��0�	�����7�4��	�
���7�	���4����7��7���?�����0���	74�7�����5��33�������0�����8	��H�
�0��7����17�����=�������
����4�10�
0�1����7����	����������0��

��
0���7�	�������	�
�
���2��0���?07����7�	6��0��0�20���8��������
��3������?�	7
������������3	�����4�5�����,��������7���4�
�		�
����
�������
��8����	����8���3������7��
��
��2��4��	��������5��8�����2�
7

���	7��4��?07����27����������0��7����30�	�����4����37���
�7��	7���6��0���7����07��7�
����5���������������
7��������0��
733��
7���7���0������������7	����
0�
0�73�	��������7���7�4�
078��7���
0���1�	�	�����2G�7�����7�
��
���6�
�
"���
�	���?3�7���4��07���0������7��7��������7���
��4�0�20���8��������
1���4���
	�7����0����8������8���7�����	����������0�������4�5���4��2,�
37	��
��7	���10���8��1�4��	���������2������1�����0���33������
57�
�����0��	�8�	,��	����0��	�8�	��4��3	����74�,�7�4��	����0��

����	87�����7	�76��
�
���5�	��1�	��7�
�4����
����4�	��0����37
�����5��0����0�4�����
�?�	7
�����7�4����7�����0�	��7���	�����
����4�	7�����1�	��
7

�3�75���1��0��0��
07�2���������733��
7����,��0���1�	��7�
�4�
���4���27���7��0�	�����������
�	�����733	�8���0��3�7����2�
733��
7�������59�
�����	����8��2��0���?�	7
��������������������1��0�
���5�	�A�8��1�6�
�
��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	����7����4� 7	���,��0��
72���������33�	������0��733��
7����6�*���74���0�������1��2�
3�����>�

•� �0��3	�3�	���074�5��������0���7	
������
�����17��87
7��4�
5���0������=�������	���1����7	��3	�8������!��0�������
����	����07��
�����	������4�7�4�4	��
����	��!�	��7���	��
078�������0�1������	����4�������0���7

����7��0�3�1��4�1�
!�5����8���0������7��7

�3�75�����������0��5���4��26�

•� �33��
7���3	���	��0�20���8����?�	7
������3������

Page 29



•� �0�������1��������5��37	��
��7	���8���5����	���������2����
��1�B�����1���4�078��������
�8�	��07	4����������6�

�
���5�	��7

��1��42�4��07���0��5���4��2�1���4���	�22������
���
�����7��	��7���7�4�1�	��0733�������33�	���0��
07�2��������6�
�0���4��
����4��0���?�	7
����������7�4��?3	����4��0���3������
�07���0��0�20�	������1���4�1�	
�5����	�7�4�5��5����	���	�0�7��0�
7�4��0����8�	������6��0���4�4�����5����8���0���1���4�5����4����
�5�	���8���	����0���33������57�
�����0��	�8�	6��
�
���"�.�#>� �07��4���27��4�7��0�	����5��2�8����������
�	�����

733	�8���0��733��
7�������59�
�����	����8��2�
�0���?�	7
��������������������1��0����5�	�A�
8��1��7�4���59�
������0��
��4������������4����
�0��	�3�	�6��

�
����"�>� �0��3	�3��7�,���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	�,�7�4�7�����0�	�	���87���
��4�������
	��7���2�����0���?�	7
�����������,�1���4�����

7������4���07	���������	��������
7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�,�1��0�37	��
��7	�
	���	��
������0��8��7�����7�4�8�75����������0�������
����	�H��0��
07	7
��	�7�4�733�7	7�
������0��
����	7��*����	�
���	�������	87������	�7H�7�4�
�0��7������������		���4��2�	���4����6������
0�
�0��3	�3��7��
��3�����1��0�����
������$,��;,�
7�4�*�(�����0������������	
�#�8���3�����
����	�����
7����7��)'%%<+�7�4��7����7��
3�7����2�2��47�
��
���7���4�����0���7����7��
��7����2�����
��-	7��1�	
�)'%$'+6�

�
��3� �����#�
�:� ���������# �%!"& �%���;���'��(��;��(��
*��

���5�	��
����4�	�4�7��733��
7�������	������4� ���4��2���������
�	����	�/7�7�7�4��	� 	�������	�����	�7��7���	7��������
��4��2�
37	��	���87�����7������	�7��17��,�����	��������7���1�37	�������17���
7�4�7���1�
�����2��8�	��0��4����2�7	�7�7�4��?��	�7��7���	7������
��
��4��2�7������	�7�����������7��4���2���8�	��0��4��	�����0���	����
���87����,��1������	�7�����������7��4������5�?��H�7���	7���������
�1����4��1��4�1�������
��4�����8�	�H�7�4��0	���
��4����	��7��
�0��	�7	6�
�
���"�.�#>� �07��4���27��4�7��0�	����5��2�8����������
�	�����

733	�8���0��733��
7�������59�
�����	����8��2�
�0���?�	7
��������������������1��0����5�	�A�

Page 30



8��1��7�4���59�
������0��
��4������������4����
�0��	�3�	�6�

�
����"�>� �0��3	�3��7��,���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	�,�1���4�����
7������4���07	�����
����	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�,�1��0�
37	��
��7	�	���	��
������0���3�
�7������	��������
�0�������4� ���4��26������
0,��0��3	�3��7���

��3���1��0�����
����*�D�7�4�*�C�����0�������
�����	
�#�8���3���������	�����
7����7��)�
'%%<+�7�4��7����7��3�7����2�2��47�
��

���7���4�����0���7����7����7����2�����
��
-	7��1�	
�)'%$'+6�

�
��,� ��9��,63!5/3!"5���!�� �%!"& �%������2�'��(�����(
��*��

���5�	��
����4�	�4�7������733��
7������	�����	5���4N&�/�
�	�3�	�������4���	��0���	�
���������1�����	����	���41�����2��1��0�
27	72��������1��2��0��4�������������7���?�����2�1�	
�0�36�
�
"���
�	��748���4����5�	���07������
����	���		����074�
7���4����
�0��733��
7�������	�
����4�	7�����5���0��
������������8��1�����0��
��	17	4���
7���������0��5���4��2�	��7��8�������0�	�5���4��2������0��
�7�����4������0��	�74�7�4�����
����=�����3	������
��	��7��8�����
�0����		�A���7
��	�������4�5���4��2��7�4�
����	87�����7	�7�
�33�����6��
�
��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	���������7��742�,�
	�3	�������2��0����0
	��������4��������37��,����5�07������
��
7��	���4����,�����59�
���������0��733��
7����6��

•� �33��
7����������������7�3	��������3��������7��27��17�����
�0��
����B��0��7	�7����
07	7
��	���4�5������������2����
�3�������1��0��?�����2�5���4��2������57

��	����0��	�746�

•� ����87��7�4�	�3�7
���������5���4��2����7

�3��4�7��
��
���7	��5���3	�3���4�5���4��2���������7	2��7�4�����
�����
����0��0�2017�6����1����4��	7
���	����0�������4�5���4��2��7�4�
�0��
����	87�����7	�76�

•� �	�3���4�4���2���������	�20��B��0��	���������������������4�
7��10�	����7	5��7�4��0�	���	��
�����
���1��0��0����
7��
	����
73�6�

•� �	�3��7���7	����	�7��7	2��3	�3�	���������0��	�7	�����0��
5���4��2����5��2�7E�4�B��0����7
���������0��3	���
��4�

�33�	�5��
0��	���B��0���1����	���	�
���0��7�����������20��
	�
��8�4�5���0��1��4�1�7�4������
�������	���������3	����	��
���	���8���0���	���

Page 31



•� �	�3��7���1����7���
���0��7������������0�*�����B�0��20�����
3	�3���4�5���4��2�1�����0	�1��0��0�����������074�16��0��
3	�3���4�5���4��2�1���4�5���8�	5�7	��2�

�
��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	���#78�4���5�����,��0��
7	
0���
�,����5�07�������0��733��
7��6�*��
�	
��7��4�7�30���2	730�
�0�1��2��0��������	���75�8��7�4��74���0�������1��2�3�����>�

•� #���������������B��1�����������7�5	�1�����4���������
733	�3	�7��6�

•� �0��4���2��������2��4�=�7�����B��0��733��
7���������4�������
7497
����	���4����6�

•� ��������	�����	8���07��5������4�	�7
��6��
•� �

��1��42��
���������74��	����20��B�7�
��37	7��8��
47���20��7�4������20�����4��07��5������4�	�7
���5��7�
�3�
�7�����
��37���57��4�����?�����2�7�4�3	�3���4�
5���4��2�B�	�������0�1��8�	���������4����	��
�������������
�����
��0�*����6��0����2����
7����7
��	�����0��5��
0��	���B��0���
��37
�����	������0����20�������0�*������07��7���0��2�
����6�
�

���5�	��7

��1��42�4��07���0��5���4��2�074�5����5	��20��
��	17	4�����0��5���4��2����������0��7497
����4�8���3���������	4�	�
���3	���
���0��5��
0��	���10�
0������59�
�����7��	���3	���	87�����
�	4�	6��0�������4��07����	�0�	�4�1�� ��0�3�0�	3����74��0��
5���4��2������17��
����	�����0��	�746��
�
���5�	��7

�3��4��07���0��4�8���3�	��078��4����7����
0�7��
3����5���1��0��0��4���2���������27���	���4�����
��
�	��6��0���
72	��4��07���0��3	�3��7���1���4�3	�8�4���1���7�����0�����7�4�
��07�
���0��7	�76��
�
���"�.�#>� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����

�0��
��4������������4�����0��	�3�	��7�4�7�
��
�����$%;��2	������6��

�
����"�>� �0��3	�3��7�,���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	�,�1���4�����
7������4���07	�����
����	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�,�1��0�
37	��
��7	�	���	��
�������37
���3����0��8���7��
7�����������0��1�4�	���	�����
���,���37
���3���
�0��	���4����7��7�����������0�����205��	��2�
3	�3�	��,���37
���3����0�����205��	��2�
3	���
��4��	���7�4�3������7�������

���7���7����6������
0��0��3	�3��7��
��3�����
1��0�����
����*�',�*D7+,��$
+,���$�7�4���$���

Page 32



�0������������	
�#�8���3���������	�����
7��
��7�6�

�
��<� ���!"�
�"8 ���/�&������ ��0�6/�"���#+,6�'��(����9(
��*��

���5�	��
����4�	�4�7������733��
7������	����	����	����2�	�
�7�������	�7��07�2�������������0	���72	�
����	7��5���4��2�����
��20����4���	�7��)��7��� $
+�7�4�����7��7��������3�	�75�������
��
5���4��2�)	��	��3�
��8�+�7�4�)�	�3���4+��07�2����������������
72	�
����	7��5���4��2������20����4���	�7�,�7�4�����7��7����������
��4�
3�	�75�������
��5���4��26�
�
"���
�	��748���4��07����8�	������7���	���
����������074�
	��3��4�4�1��0�4��7���4�
�����������	��7���������0��3	�3��7�6�
�0������4�
7��4��07��4�	��2�47����20��0��	���0����8������������
7	����2��	���7
��8������7���0�������7	����2��	����7�����7�
�,�
��74��2�7�4�����74��2�7
��8�����7����5���1��0��2���	7����8������
57

2	���4�������7�4��07��07	�����7��������	�7���	�����
����7�
��1���4������0�	���	���

�	6�*�1�8�	,�4�	��2��0���7���
�8����2,���20�������7�4��7	�����	���2�3�	��4�
�0����8������57

2	���4�������4	�3����2����
7�����7�4�7�3	�5����
�����������7�������7�4��0��3������7����	�7�����7�
���0�	���	��
7	����6��������0�	���	��	�
�����4�4��07��7�
��4������5��
733��4�4����7���733	�87�����	�2��7����0���3�	7���2�0��	������0��
����6��0������4�7���1��0�5��4	7���7���4�4����4������'6�
�
"���
�	��7����748���4��07���0���074�	�
��8�4�7���	�0�	������	��	���
�0��733��
7���	7����2�
��
�	�����	��3�
������0��3	�3���4�
	���	�
���������0��	������3�	7�����7�4����37	��
��7	��0��3	�3���4�
	���	�
�������� 7�
�*���47��7�4����47��1�	
��2,�7�4�7���0��
�7��������	7����2�
��
�	������	��3�
�����7����5�	����	��3������
�07��078��5����	�
��8�46�"���
�	���?3�7���4��07���0����
	���	�
������1�	����
���7	������	4�	�����7��2�7	4��0��	���4����7��
7�������������205��	��2�3	�3�	�����7�4�7��7���4�4�8�	��������
�0��	�
�����4�4�
��4�������07��1���4�	���	�
��7
��8��������0�	�
�07��8�0�
�����8�����������	��	����0�������17���������4�5���16�
�
"���
�	��748���4��07��7���	�0�	������	����	�3	�����7�����07��7����
5����	�
��8�4��	���7����205��	��2�	���4�����5����07���0���4�4�����
	7����7�����	�0�	���������8�	�7�4�75�8���0����7�	�74��
�8�	�4�
����0��
���������	�3�	�6�
�
"���
�	��748���4��07��
��4������'��0���4�5��7���4�4�7�������1�>�
�
I���������7���
�7��4�1��0��0������0�	�5��7��0�	���4��07���5��
��74�4��	�����74�4,���	��4,�	�37�	�4,�17�0�4��	���0�	1����

Page 33



�7���7���4�1��0����0��733��
7���������,������4������0��0��	�����
%C>%%����'%>%%����47������7��	47�6������
0��3�	7������07���5��
��4�	�7
���1��0����0��733��
7����������������47����	� 7�
�
*���47��6�
�
!�
�
	"#$
��
��� 
�������������	��
��
��	����
��	�����
 ��	��
��
��������
	���
���� ����
����
	���������
�����%�&�
������
'
�(�)����
���	��*
	��
���
�
����
	�+�
�
��3	�����7������1�	��	�
��8�4��	���&���7���	�33�����5�07������
��
7��	���4�������8��2�����0���7�����4������
7���	��7�5���10���7
��
�7��	�-7	��7�4��0������,������59�
���������0��733��
7����6�*��
	7���4��0�������1��2�
��
�	���

•� �7	2�����5�	����8�0�
����)�	7���	��7�4���33�	��8�0�
���+�
7

�����2��0�������7�4�0�20����5�	������7���3	�3���4����
1�	
�����0������6�

•� ���37���07������3	�8�4�4�����	�7��������0��	�����1�	
6��
•� �0�	��������0��2����2�7	7������0��7����������	���4�����
•� ���4������'������
��7	�7�4�
���4�5������	3	���4����4����	����
17��6�

�0����7����2�"���
�	�	�!	�74�7���4�4�
��4������'���	��0��
5�����������0���3�7
�	6�
�
��3	�����7������1�	��7����	�
��8�4��	�����
07	4����7207�,�
�7�72��2�#�	�
��	�7�4��1��	�����737
7�7,������33�	������0��
733��
7����6�*���?3�7���4��07��0��074���8�4�����
7���	��7�5�����	�
�0���7����0	�����7	�,�1��0�0���1���A���7�����078��2���8�4�����0��
8���72����	�'%���7	�6�*���74���0�������1��2�
�������>�

•� �737
7�7�07��7�17���074��7���0��	������3�	7�������	�
�7	�0�����$%�1��0����
��3�7�����

•� :<�3�	
�������8���72�	��078�������59�
��4�B��59�
������

����7��7���	3	����7��1��078��5����8�	���3���75����
3�7���7�4�
�������4�1��0�	���4����,�0��4��2�7�4	�3����
������2�7���0��8���72��07��6��

•� ���1�	
�1���4��7
��3�7
��5��1����$%3��7�4�@7�6��
•� ��=�����4��07��8�0�
�����8�������1�	������	���	�
��4�B�
@7����7	�������
���7	�����5��75��������78���7	������78��4�
�	7���
�5���4��3��������	17�6�

•� ��22����4��7
��2�
��4��������3�
���
�����737
7�7����7��
���7��7��8���72�	����7	��75����107���7��0733�������������
�0�������
07�2����������	�6��

•� ��������
��8���������	����4������������
7�����B�1��17������
��7���0�	�6�

�

Page 34



���	��3��������7�=�������,�0���?3�7���4��07���0��
��37���17��
3�7����2������8����O@%,%%%����'%$(����4�3��
7�����������������	7���	��
����	4�	��07��������������	7���	��
7��5����74�4�4�	��2��0��47��
	�74�������78���0�������1��2���	���2����78��4��0�����4����	���74�
�7���7����20��10����	7���	��	���	����������7��574�1�7�0�	G	�74�

��4�������������4��7���	���	�6�
�
����
����	�����������8�4,�7�4�����
����	����
�	���
��4�4,�7�
����������733	�8���0��733��
7�������59�
������0��
��4������������4�
����0��	�3�	��5���1��0��0��0��	���3�
����4�5������
�	�����7���4�4�

��4������'�5���2�
07�2�4����%@>%%����'%>%%��7�4����7���1�1�	
�
������47���7�4� 7�
�*���47��6��
�
����
����	��7�8�����8�4,�7�4�����
����	�"		������
��4�4,�7��
7���4��������733	�8���0��733��
7�������59�
������0��
��4�������
�����4�����0��	�3�	��5���1��0��0��0��	���3�
����4�5������
�	�����
7���4�4�
��4������'�5���2�
07�2�4�7�������1�>�

•� ���47�����-	�47��B�%C>%%����'%>%%��
•� �7��	47��%C>%%����$C>%%�
•� ���1�	
����5����4�	�7
���������47����	�57�
�0���47���
•� ��	�����������5�����3�	7	����	�7�3�	��4����$'�����0�6�

�
����
����	���������7�
�4�����
����	��7�8������
����4�	�
07�2��2�
0���7���4��������7���1��0��733��
7���������7	��1�	
�7��@7��5���
0��4�
����4�4������
��
�	����8�	��0��7������������
7��	���4����6�
�
"��5���2�3�������0��8���,��0��7���4�����3	�3���4�5��
����
����	��7�8��,�7�4���
��4�4�5������
����	�"		���,�17��

7		��46�
�
���"�.�#>� �07���0��733��
7�����5��733	�8�4���59�
�����

�0��
��4������������4�����0��	�3�	��7�4��0��
7���4�4�
��4�������5���16�

�
����4�4����4������$�
�0��������07���
�7���5��$D�&7��7	��'%$D�
�������3	��	�����07��47���7���	�0�	�3�7����2�
3�	��������07��5�����5�7���4�����?���4��0��
3�	��4�����0��3�	�������6��
�
��7���>�����07���0����
7����7����2����0�	����
�7��7�������0����37
������0��������3����0��
	���4����7��7�������������205��	��2�3	�3�	����6�

�
�

Page 35



����4�4����4������'�
���������,�7���
�7��4�1��0��0������0�	�5��
7��0�	���4��07���5����74�4��	�����74�4,�
��	��4,�	�37�	�4,�17�0�4��	���0�	1����
�7���7���4�1��0����0��733��
7���������,������4��
����0��0��	�����%C6%%����'%6%%����47�����
-	�47��7�4�%C6%%����$C6%%�����7��	47��6����
��
0��3�	7������07���5����4�	�7
���1��0����0��
733��
7����������������47����	� 7�
�*���47��6��
�
��7���>�����7��2�7	4��0��	���4����7��7�������
������205��	��2�3	�3�	�����7�4������
�	��

��3��7�
��1��0�����
����$�����0����	
�
#�8���3���������	�����
7����7�6�

�
����"�>� �0��3	�3��7�,���59�
������0��
��4������������4�

����0��	�3�	��7�4��0��7���4�4�
��4�������
75�8�,�1���4�����
7������4���07	�����
����	��������7

��1��42�4���3�	�7�
�,�1��0�
37	��
��7	�	���	��
�������37
���3����0���3���

07	7
��	�7�4�3�	3��������4���2�7���������0��
�	���� ���,���37
���3����0��	���4����7��
7�������������205��	��2�3	�3�	����,��0��
����7��75����������0�������	����0��733��
7�����
�����7�4���37
���3����0���7�����7�4�

��8�����
�����0�2017�����	������0��749�����2�
���1�	
6������
0��0��3	�3��7��
��3�����1��0�
����
���*:�7�4��$������0����	
�0�	��7�4�
*��5�	���7�,�3���
����� $,�� (�7�4���$����
�0������������	
�#�8���3���������	�����
7��
��7��7�4���8�	������3���
��
���7���4�1��0���
37	72	730��@:�!�:'�����0���7����7����7����2�
����
��-	7��1�	
6�

�
�1�� 	�
��
	�	���
��	�������	��

���5�	��	�
��8�4�7�	�3�	��10�
0�3	�8�4�4��0���1��0�7�

��������2�=�7	��	����347�������0�����5�	��������	
������

7����
�		�����������7�4��2���	��0��7	�7�
�8�	�4�5���0��
���������6�
�
"������5�	�	7���4�
��
�	����07���0������	
������
7����
�347���	�3�	�����������
����4�	�4�7���0����4����7����2�72��476�
�0���4��
����4�7���	�7��8��3����5���17������	�
��8��2��347����
�������	
�������	4�	��10�
0�1���4�7���1��0������4�8������	��
���������0��6�

Page 36



�
���"�.�#>� )�+� �07���0��	�3�	��5������46�
�
� )��+� �07���0���07�	���7����1��0�����
�	��

	�27	4��2�3����5���7���	�7��8��17������
3	�������2��0������	�7�����������5�	�����
����	�6��

�
����"�>� ����347������5�	������0�����5�	����

�����7�4��2�����	
������
7����1��0����0��
��5!����������7	�76�

�
�
�
�
����
����	� ��7����,��07�	�
P�0��������2���7	��4�7��(6%%�3��7�4������0�4�7��<6D%�3�Q6�

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



 

Application Reference Number: 12/03598/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 1 of 6 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Date: 14 February 2013 Ward: Micklegate 
Team: Major and 

Commercial Team 
Parish: Micklegate Planning 

Panel 
 
Reference:  12/03598/FULM 
Application at:  Oliver House  Bishophill Junior York YO1 6ES  
For: Change of use from elderly peoples home (Use Class C2) to 

offices and workspace and erection of single storey front and 
rear extensions 

By:  Ms Angela Portz 
Application Type: Major Full Application (13 weeks) 
Target Date:  12 March 2013 
Recommendation: Approve 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 Oliver House comprises a substantial three storey buff brick constructed building 
circa 1970 occupying a visually prominent site within the Historic Core Conservation 
Area to the south west of the City Centre and directly to the east of the City Walls, a 
Scheduled Ancient Monument. The building was constructed as an Elderly Persons 
Home but it has recently become surplus to operational requirements and has since 
closed.  Planning permission is sought for the change of use of the property from an 
Elderly Person's Home Use Class C2 to a mix of offices and workspace for the York 
Council for Voluntary Organisations together with two single storey extensions to the 
north and to the south east elevations to provide a formal reception area and to 
provide a cafe with associated kitchen. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
Areas of Archaeological Interest GMS Constraints: City Centre Area 0006 
Conservation Area GMS Constraints: Central Historic Core CONF 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYHE3 Conservation Areas 
CYHE2 Development in historic locations 
CYC3 Change of use of community facilities 
CYE4 Employment devt on unallocated land 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4aPage 39



 

Application Reference Number: 12/03598/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 2 of 6 

3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
INTERNAL:- 
 
3.1 Environmental Protection Unit raise no objection to the proposal. 
 
3.2 Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development were consulted with 
respect to the proposal on 14th December 2012. Any comments will be reported 
verbally.  
 
EXTERNAL:- 
 
3.3 Micklegate Planning Panel were consulted with regard to the proposal on 14th 
December 2012. Any comments will be reported verbally. 
 
3.4 Safer York Partnership raise no objection to the proposal. 
 
3.5 One letter of representation has been received from a neighbouring property in 
respect of the proposal. The following is a summary of its contents:- 
 
i) Broad support for the proposed change of use; 
ii) Objection to the proposed external material for the reception area extension to the 
north elevation of the building; 
iii) Objection to the proposed relocation of the reception area on highway safety 
grounds; 
iv) Objection to the relocation of a section of car parking to the principal site 
frontage. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
KEY CONSIDERATIONS:- 
 
4.1 KEY CONSIDERATIONS INCLUDE:- 

• Impact upon the character and appearance of the Historic Core Conservation 
Area 

• Loss of a Community Facility 
• Highway issues 

 
STATUS OF THE DRAFT LOCAL PLAN 
 
4.2 The Development Control Local Plan was approved for Development Control 
purposes in April 2005; its policies are material considerations in arriving at 
Development Management decisions although it is considered that their weight is 
limited except where in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 40



 

Application Reference Number: 12/03598/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 3 of 6 

 
IMPACT UPON THE CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE OF THE HISTORIC 
CORE CONSERVATION AREA 
 
4.3 Policy HE3 of the York Development Control Local Plan sets a firm policy 
presumption that within Conservation Areas development proposals that would 
involve external alterations together with changes of use will only be permitted 
where there would be no adverse impact upon the character or appearance of the 
area. Central Government Planning Policy in respect of Planning and the Historic 
Environment set out in paragraphs 131 and 132 of the NPPF indicates that in 
determining planning applications that impact upon designated Heritage Assets 
such as Conservation Areas, Local Planning Authority's should give particular 
weight to the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage 
assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation.  
 
4.4 The current proposal envisages the change of use and modest ground floor 
extension of a disused Elderly Person's Home of utilitarian appearance. The Historic 
Core Conservation Area Appraisal identifies the building and its neighbour to the 
east as not making a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area and identifies the need for public realm improvements in the 
direct vicinity in order to secure the visual amenity of the wider area. The proposed 
development envisages dealing with its impact upon character by painting the 
ground floor in an off-white colour to contrast with the buff brick above whilst at the 
same time the two single storey ground floor extensions would be constructed in a 
polycarbonate cladding material. Both elements would reduce the impact of the 
development on the Conservation Area by relieving its often plain, monotonous 
external appearance. 
 
4.5 The principal northern elevation of the property is furthermore viewed in the 
context of the early 19th Century terraced housing and Listed former Presbyterian 
Chapel lining Priory Street with the City Walls, a Scheduled Ancient Monument to 
the east. The overwhelming mass and bulk of the building together with its 
idiosyncratic use of coarse buff brick draws the eye of the viewer away from the 
more high quality townscape around. The introduction of a series of measures 
including the partial re-fenestration of the north and south principal elevations, the 
painting of the ground floor and the construction of single storey extension to both 
front and rear elevations would effectively mitigate the existing impact upon the 
setting of adjacent Listed Buildings and the City Walls. The terms of Policy HE3 of 
the York Development Control Local Plan would therefore be complied with. 
 
LOSS OF A COMMUNITY FACILITY 
 
4.6 Policy C3 of the York Development Control Local Plan sets a firm policy 
presumption that planning permission will only be granted for the change of use of 
social, health or care homes where the proposal is of a scale and design appropriate 

Page 41



 

Application Reference Number: 12/03598/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 4 of 6 

to the character and appearance of the locality, it can be demonstrated that the 
existing buildings are surplus to the existing or future needs of the local community 
and it can be demonstrated that alternative acceptable sites for the existing use can 
be provided. The existing building was constructed in the early 1970s as an Elderly 
Person's Home. Following a review of services for older persons in 2011 a greater 
emphasis has been placed upon assisted living independently with smaller more up-
to-date facilities where this would not prove viable and the application site became 
surplus to requirements. The design and location of the building has made it 
unsuitable for another similar community home use. The proposed development 
relates directly to the existing service provided by the Local Council for Voluntary 
Organisations at the Priory Street Centre a short distance away. It would incorporate 
a range of office suites, meeting rooms and a cafe within the rear ground floor 
extension for use by local charities and community groups and would link closely to 
other voluntary sector activities in the area. The terms of Policy C3 of the Draft Local 
Plan would therefore be complied with. 
 
HIGHWAY ISSUES 
 
4.7 Concern has been raised in respect of the location of the proposed parking and 
reception areas in relation to the flow of traffic on the adjacent highway. However, 
traffic flow on the adjacent highway is extremely modest and the narrowness and 
configuration of the road network surrounding the property is such that vehicles may 
not easily travel at speed. It is felt therefore that the proposal would not have a 
material impact upon the safe and free flow of traffic in the locality. The 
Conservation Area Appraisal seeks improvements to the public realm in the vicinity 
of the principal northern elevation of the building. This can effectively be secured by 
a condition on any permission seeking the submission and approval of a detailed 
hard and soft landscaping scheme together with samples of floorscaping materials. 
 
5.0 CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 Oliver House comprises a substantial three storey free standing structure circa 
1970 occupying a prominent location within the Historic Core Conservation Area. 
The building was formerly in use as an Elderly Person's Home and following a 
review of provision for older persons within the City has been declared surplus to 
requirements. Planning permission is sought for the change of use of the building to 
provide a suite of offices with associated meeting rooms for a range of local charity 
and community groups. Two single storey extensions to the principal northern street 
elevation, to house a reception area, and to the south east to house a cafe, have 
been proposed. The existing building by virtue of its scale, massing and external 
appearance, to an extent, erodes the character and appearance of the Conservation 
Area .The application proposes the construction of the two extensions in a 
polycarbonate cladding system, the painting of the ground floor off white and the 
replacement of a section of the fenestration of both principal elevations in timber. It 
is felt that the proposals would significantly enhance the impact of the existing 

Page 42



 

Application Reference Number: 12/03598/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 5 of 6 

building upon the character and appearance of the surrounding area as well as 
being acceptable in land use terms. Approval is therefore recommended. 
 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT  
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
1  TIME2  Development start within three years -   
 
 2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following plans:- 
 
Drawing Refs:- A138_151; A138/130; A138/129; A138_150; A138/101; A138/128; 
A138/107; A138/105; A138/103; A138/106; A138/104; A138/102; and A138/100. 
Date Stamped 23rd November 2012. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 3  The building shall not be occupied until the areas shown on the approved 
plans for parking and manoeuvring of vehicles and cycles have been constructed 
and laid out in accordance with the approved plans, and thereafter such areas shall 
be retained solely for such purposes. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety. 
 
4  VISQ8  Samples of exterior materials to be app -   
 
5. No development shall take place until there has been submitted and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed landscaping scheme which shall 
illustrate the number, species, height and position of trees and shrubs  and areas of 
hard landscaping .  This scheme shall be implemented within a period of six months 
of the completion of the development.  Any trees or plants which within a period of 
five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a similar size and species, unless alternatives are agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety, 
suitability and disposition of species and hard landscaping  within the site to secure 
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 
 
6. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby authorised samples of the 
proposed external surfacing/floorscaping materials to be used in association with the 
development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Page 43



 

Application Reference Number: 12/03598/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 6 of 6 

Authority. The development shall thenceforth be undertaken in strict accordance 
with the details thereby approved. 
 
Reason:- To safeguard the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and 
to secure compliance with Policies HE2 and HE3 of the York Development Control 
Local Plan. 
 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 
with particular reference to impact upon character and appearance of Historic Core 
Conservation Area and loss of a community facility. As such the proposal complies 
with Policies HE2, HE3,C3 and E4 of the City of York Development Control Local 
Plan. 
  
2. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL`S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH 
 
In considering the application, The Local Planning Authority has implemented the 
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraphs 
186 and 187), through a comprehensive and detailed  pre-application discussion 
process, and  having taken account of all relevant national guidance and local 
policies, considers the proposal to be satisfactory subject to appropriate conditions. 
For this reason, no amendments were sought during the processing of the 
application, and it was not necessary to work with the applicant/agent in order to 
achieve a positive outcome. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Erik Matthews Development Management Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551416 
 

Page 44



�

�

�

����

����

����

����

����

����

��������

����

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not Set

Oliver House, Bishophill Junior, YO1 6ES
12/03598/FULM                                                                                  

City of York Council

City and Environmental Services

01 February 2013

1:1250

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 12/03627/FUL  Item No: 4b 
Page 1 of 4 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Date: 14 February 2013 Ward: Acomb 
Team: Householder and 

Small Scale Team 
Parish: Acomb Planning Panel 

 
 
Reference:  12/03627/FUL 
Application at:  57 Woodlea Avenue York YO26 5JX   
For:  Erection of porch to front 
By:  Mr & Mrs Chris Gunnee 
Application Type: Full Application 
Target Date:  6 February 2013 
Recommendation: Householder Approval 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a porch on the principal 
elevation of this semi-detached property. The proposal would measure approx 2.9 
metres in total height reducing to approx 2.7 metres at the eaves height by approx 
1.8 metres in length and approx 3.0 metres in width. The application site is a semi-
detached dwelling, with a single storey side extension and located within an area of 
similar property styles. Planning permission is required because the area of the 
porch when measured would exceed 3 square metres. 
 
1.2 This application is to be determined by the West and City Centre Area Planning 
Sub Committee because the applicant is a council employee. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
Air safeguarding GMS Constraints: Air Field safeguarding 0175 
DC Area Teams GMS Constraints: West Area 0004 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 Design 
CYH7 Residential extensions 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1 Acomb Planning Panel - no comments received. 
  

Agenda Item 4bPage 47



 

Application Reference Number: 12/03627/FUL  Item No: 4b 
Page 2 of 4 

3.2. Neighbour notification letters sent 18.12.2012 period expired on 08.01.13 - no 
comments received. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 KEY ISSUES: 
 
1. Impact on the existing dwelling. 
2. Impact on neighbours. 
3. Impact on the surrounding area 
 
The relevant polices and guidance:  
 
4.2 THE NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (2012) sets out the 
Government's overarching planning policies. As one of 12 core planning principles, it 
states that planning should always seek to secure high quality design and a good 
standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings 
(paragraph 17).  It states that the Government attaches great importance to the 
design of the built environment. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development, is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to 
making places better for people (paragraph 56). It states that permission should be 
refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available 
for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions 
(paragraph 64). 
 
4.3 DRAFT LOCAL PLAN POLICY CYH7 - states that residential extensions will be 
permitted where (i) the design and materials are sympathetic to the main dwelling 
and the locality (ii) the design and scale are appropriate to the main building (iii) 
there is no adverse effect upon the amenities of neighbours. 
 
4.4 DRAFT LOCAL PLAN POLICY CYGP1 - sets out a series of criteria that the 
design of development proposals is expected to meet. These include requirements 
to (i) respect or enhance the local environment, (ii) be of a density, layout, scale, 
mass and design that is compatible with neighbouring buildings, spaces and the 
character of the area using appropriate building materials; (iii) avoid the loss of open 
spaces, important gaps within development, vegetation, water features and other 
features that contribute to the quality of the local environment; (iv) retain, enhance 
and/or create urban spaces, public views, skyline, landmarks and other townscape 
features which make a significant contribution to the character of the area, and take 
opportunities to reveal such features to public view; and (v) ensure that residents 
living nearby are not unduly affected by noise, disturbance, overlooking, 
overshadowing or dominated by overbearing structures.  
 
4.5 SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING  GUIDIANCE 'A Guide to Extensions and 
Alterations to Private Dwelling Houses' March 2001 states that a porch extension 

Page 48



 

Application Reference Number: 12/03627/FUL  Item No: 4b 
Page 3 of 4 

should be of a simple design and of a size which does not dominate the front 
elevation. The shape and materials should reflect the character of the main building, 
including the style of doors and windows. A pitched roof to the porch should be 
used. 
 
DESIGN &VISUAL AMENITY: 
 
4.6 In terms of design the proposed porch would infill an area between the original 
ground floor window and external doorway of approximately 3.0 metres in width, 
incorporating a mono pitch roof, constructed of brick elevations and a tiled roof. It 
would extend forward of the main entrance by approximately 1.8 metres, thus 
making the new structure more prominent in the neighbourhood. However, it would 
still retain a satisfactory set back from the public highway. In terms of visual amenity 
the surrounding area is characterised by various styles of two storey dwellings, 
some with  noticeable side extensions and flat roof car ports situated with marginal 
set backs. On this basis the proposal would accord with the general pattern of 
frontage development established by the surrounding properties.  
 
NEIGHBOUR AMENITY: 
 
4.7 The proposed porch by virtue of its position would have little or no impact on 
neighbour amenity. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 It is considered that the proposal is acceptable in terms of size and scale and 
would not cause undue harm to the living conditions of nearby neighbours. Thus the 
proposal would comply with polices H7 (Residential Extensions) and GP1 (Design) 
of the Draft Local Plan. 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Householder Approval 
 
1  TIME2  Development start within three years -   
 
2  PLANS1  Approved plans - Plans submitted on 11/12/12  
 
3  VISQ1  Matching materials -   
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL: 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 

Page 49



 

Application Reference Number: 12/03627/FUL  Item No: 4b 
Page 4 of 4 

with particular reference to the effect on residential amenity and the impact on the 
street scene.  As such the proposal complies with Central Government advice 
contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), policies 
GP1 and H7 of the City of York Development Control Local Plan and the 'Guide to 
extensions and alterations to private dwelling houses' Supplementary Planning 
Guidance. 
 
2. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL`S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH 
 
In considering the application, The Local Planning Authority has implemented the 
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraphs 
186 and 187) and having taken account of all relevant national guidance and local 
policies, considers the proposal to be satisfactory. For this reason, no amendments 
were sought during the processing of the application, and it was not necessary to 
work with the applicant/agent in order to achieve a positive outcome. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Sharon Jackson Development Management Assistant 
Tel No: 01904 551359 
 

Page 50



�

����

����

����

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not Set

57 Woodlea Avenue, YO26 5JX
12/03627/FUL                                                                                       

City of York Council

City and Environmental Services

01 February 2013

1:1250

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 12/02985/FUL  Item No: 4c 
Page 1 of 11 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Date: 14 February 2013 Ward: Guildhall 
Team: Major and 

Commercial Team 
Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel 

 
 
Reference:  12/02985/FUL 
Application at:  Army and Navy Stores 54 - 56 Fossgate York YO1 9TF  
For: Change of use from shop (Use Class A1) to mixed use 

comprising retail, restaurant/cafe and drinking establishment. 
By:  Mr And Mrs Rachel Greaves 
Application Type: Full Application 
Target Date:  29 October 2012 
Recommendation: Approve 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1  This application seeks planning permission for the change of use of the vacant 
Army and Navy Stores, Nos. 54-56 Fossgate to a mixed retail, restaurant and cafe, 
drinking establishment (Use Classes A1/ A3/A4). The building floorspace is 133 squ. 
m, and, whilst a mixed use permission is sought the applicant has indicated the 
following floorspaces: 
 
• Shop - 30 squ.m 
• Restaurant/cafe - 266 squ.m 
• Drinking establishment - 103 squ.m 
 
1.2   The applicant has advised that the intention is to establish a quality bar with 
retail and food. Initially the level of hot food/ cooking would be minimal. The 
applicant proposes that a commercial extraction system would not be required at 
this stage.  
 
1.3   The proposed internal layout comprises: 
 
• Basement- storage. 
• Ground Floor-   retail/ food/drink.  The amount of floor space given over to retail 
would be approximately 15%. The retail area would be formed in the front section 
of the property, adjacent to the junction of Pavement and Fossgate. It is 
envisaged that the retail area would principally sell bottled beer etc. to 
compliment the business.  Toilets and kitchen accommodated within a later 
addition to the rear. 

• First floor - food and drink.  

Agenda Item 4cPage 53



 

Application Reference Number: 12/02985/FUL  Item No: 4c 
Page 2 of 11 

• Second floor - mainly be storage/ unused with the exception of the front room of 
No. 54 adjacent to Fossgate to be used as a staffroom.   

• Attic- storage 
 

1.4  Waste would be stored in the basement. The operational hours would be from 
10:00 to 24:00 hours, Monday to Sunday. The business would result in 5 no. full-
time jobs and 7 no. part time jobs. There are no details of any external or internal 
alterations associated with the proposals.  
 
CONTEXT 
 
1.5  The premises consist of three buildings that are of  special architectural, 
historical and visual interest. The property at No.54 is a Grade II * Listed Building 
and Nos. 55 and 56 are listed at Grade II. The listing for Nos. 55 and 56 also include 
No. 30 Pavement as it was formerly a row of three houses ( dating from circa 1796) 
which became one shop. The shopfronts at Nos. 55 and 56 Fossgate date from 
circa 1955. No. 54 Fossgate dates from the mid -seventeenth century, is timber 
framed, and its shopfront is continuous with Nos. 55 and 56 Fossgate, and the 
ground floor of No. 54 was refitted circa 1932. The Statutory List description for Nos. 
55 and 56 states that the interior of the shop contains early twentieth century shop 
fittings.  
 
1.6   The properties are situated in a prominent location at the corner of Fossgate 
and Pavement in Central Historic Core Conservation Area No. 1. The premises are 
situated on a secondary shopping street in an area of mixed retail, restaurants and 
public house uses on the ground floor, and residential uses adjacent at upper floor 
level and nearby. The neighbouring uses are Yummy Chicken (A5 use) on the 
ground floor fronting Pavement. There are 5 No. flats above the takeaway on its 
upper floors, the Blue Bell Public House( A4 use) on Fossgate with a management 
flat on the upper floor, the Terrace Public House on the opposite corner of Fossgate 
and Pavement. There are nearby upper residential properties on Fossgate and to 
the rear of Fossgate that have access from a lane that also leads to the rear of the 
application site.   
 
1.7   The applicant is presented to the West/ Centre Planning Sub- Committee at the 
request of Cllr. Brian Watson because of the impact of the change of use on the 
building and on the locality.    
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
Areas of Archaeological Interest GMS Constraints: City Centre Area 0006 
Conservation Area GMS Constraints: Central Historic Core CONF 

Page 54



 

Application Reference Number: 12/02985/FUL  Item No: 4c 
Page 3 of 11 

Listed Buildings GMS Constraints: Grade 2 Star; Bluebell Inn 53 Fossgate York  
Listed Buildings GMS Constraints: Grade 2; 28 Pavement York   
Listed Buildings GMS Constraints: Grade 2; 54-56 Fossgate York   
Listed Buildings GMS Constraints: Grade 2; 24 Pavement York   
Listed Buildings GMS Constraints: Grade 2; 55 - 56 Fossgate York  
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYHE3 Conservation Areas 
CYHE4   Listed Buildings 
CYS6  Control of food and drink (A3) uses 
CYGP1   Design 
CYS5   Non-retail uses in shopping streets 
CYS7  Evening entertainment including A3/D2 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
INTERNAL 
 
Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development 
 
3.1 No objections to the impact on the conservation area but further details are 
required to assess the impact of the change of use on the listed building. 
 
Environmental Protection Unit 
 
3.2   Insufficient information submitted initially. Following site visits and receipt of 
further information, no objections subject to conditions  
 
EXTERNAL 
 
Guildhall Planning Panel  
 
3.3 Object to the further loss of retail floor space and consider York cannot afford to 
lose more retail space, and further restaurants and coffee houses should be 
discouraged. Crucial information lacking such as the number of covers. 
 
Local Publicity 
 
3.4 Objection received from the occupier of the next door property and owner of 
nearby food shop on grounds of the impact on business, and the proximity of the 
use harming their living conditions.  Explain that their living and sleeping 
accommodation is immediately adjacent to the application site and they would be 
disturbed by the proposed 0200 and 0300 closing times (Officer note: the applicant 
has altered the proposed closing times to 24.00 Midnight) 

Page 55



 

Application Reference Number: 12/02985/FUL  Item No: 4c 
Page 4 of 11 

 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 Key issues:  
 
• Impact of change of use, including loss of retail and impact on the vitality and 
viability of the area and the city centre  

• Amenity of surrounding occupants 
• Impact on heritage assets - the listed building and the Central Historic Core 
conservation area. 

 
PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT 
 
National Policy Guidance 
 
4.2 The National Planning Policy Framework has a stated presumption in favour of 
sustainable development. Relevant specific policy topics include ensuring the vitality 
of town centres, conserving and enhancing the historic environment, and 
encouraging good design. 
 
Local Planning Policy 
 
4.3 The Development Control Local Plan was approved for Development Control 
purposes in April 2005: its policies are material considerations where they reflect the 
National Planning Policy Framework. The relevant policies are; 
 
4.4 Policy GP1 'Design' of the City of York Council Development Control Local Plan 
includes the expectation that development proposals will, inter alia; respect or 
enhance the local environment; be of a density, layout, scale, mass and design that 
is compatible with neighbouring buildings and spaces, ensure residents living 
nearby are not unduly affected by noise, disturbance, overlooking, overshadowing or 
dominated by overbearing structures. 
 
4.5 Policy HE3 'Conservation Areas' states that within conservation areas, proposals 
for the following types of development will only be permitted where there is no 
adverse effect on the character and appearance of the area: demolition of a building 
(whether listed or not); external alterations; changes of use which are likely to 
generate environmental or traffic problems. 
 
4.6 Policy HE4 'Listed Buildings' states that consent will only be granted for the 
following types of development where there is no adverse effect on the character, 
appearance or setting of the building: development in the immediate vicinity of listed 
buildings; demolition; internal and external alterations; change of use; erection of 
satellite antenna. 

Page 56



 

Application Reference Number: 12/02985/FUL  Item No: 4c 
Page 5 of 11 

 
4.7  Policy S5 supports retail and service uses on non-primary shopping streets 
where they would not harm the vitality and viability of the city centre as a whole.   
 
4.8  Policy S6 'Control of Food and Drink Uses' states that planning permission for 
the extension, alteration or development for food and drink uses will be granted 
providing: any likely impact on the amenities of the surrounding occupiers as a result 
of traffic, noise, smell or litter would be acceptable; the opening hours of hot food 
takeaways and premises where alcohol is consumed are to be restricted where this 
is necessary to protect the amenity of surrounding occupiers; car and cycle parking 
meets the standards outlined in Appendix E; acceptable external flues and means of 
extraction have been proposed; and security issues where consumption of alcohol is 
involved have been addressed. 
 
4.9   Policy S7 seeks to promote the introduction of new evening entertainment uses 
provided there is no adverse impact on the vitality and viability of the city centre and 
no adverse impact on residential amenity.  
 
ASSESSMENT 
 
Land Use  
 
4.10  The premises are presently vacant and to bring the buildings back into use 
would be compliant with the National Planning Policy Framework which seeks to 
promote city centres and enhance their vitality and viability. The thrust of local plan 
policies also steers commercial and leisure developments to previously developed 
land/buildings within defined city centres. In principle, restaurants and drinking 
establishments on non-primary shopping streets are supported by Policies  S5, S6 
and S7 of the Local Plan and guidance within the NPPF which seeks to promote a 
vibrant local economy whilst protecting local distinctiveness, provided there is no 
harm to retail vitality, the living conditions of nearby residents, and public safety.  
 
4.11 Fossgate is not a primary shopping street and is a street where the principle of 
non-retail uses and other commercial uses, including restaurant/cafe/drinking 
establishments are appropriate according to planning policy provided the impact on 
the vitality and the viability of the area is acceptable. The proposed mixed use would 
not detract from the vitality and viability of this part of the city centre. The area 
surrounding the application property has a mix of retail/ city centre residential/ 
takeaway/ public bar and restaurant uses, and it is considered that the proposed use 
would be  reasonably compatible with the neighbouring uses if appropriately 
controlled to ensure that nearby residential amenity would not unduly affected. 
Indeed the change of use would bring a vacant retail unit back into use, adding to 
the vitality and viability of the area in land use terms with a vibrant city centre use in 
a sustainable location.  
 

Page 57



 

Application Reference Number: 12/02985/FUL  Item No: 4c 
Page 6 of 11 

The amenity of surrounding occupants 
 
Use 
4.12 The proposed mixed use would be situated in a part of the city centre where 
there are higher ambient noise levels from the existing mixed uses in the area- 
residential, public houses, restaurants, takeaways, taxi rank. Whilst there are no 
significant concerns regarding the general impact of the use in the area, there are 
specific concerns due to the potential for loss of amenity to the local residents that 
occupy the adjacent buildings and the surrounding buildings area from noise. The 
applicant has revised the hours of operation of the business from 10:00 to 24:00, 
rather than the previously requested hours which finished at 02:00am, with the 
business operating during these hours seven days a week.  Information has also 
been received detailing the proposed layout of the uses within the building (para. 
1.3).  
  
Noise Transference 
4.13 The applicant envisages that the business would not be a nightclub or a noisy 
public house, and music would be kept at low level to allow customers to converse. 
However there are still concerns over the potential for loss of amenity or noise 
nuisance as a result of the proposed use, particularly the class A4 drinking 
establishment use. The site is directly adjacent to a number of residential flats and 
residential accommodation above the Blue Bell public house next door. The noise 
concerns principally relate to noise from music, people drinking/talking/shouting and 
plant/machinery noise.  
 
4.14  The sound insulation values of the party walls with the adjacent residential 
properties and room layouts are unknown and the submitted noise impact analysis 
recommends that wall linings on these elevations are provided to reduce sound 
transmission to an acceptable level. The proposed specification for such walls 
comprised wall linings (with two layers of 12.5mm plasterboard supported on a 
timber or metal frame with a minimum distance of 10mm between the frame and 
existing wall with the void filled with quilt mineral fibre of at least 35mm thickness 
and a density of 10kg per cubic metre) should reduce noise from the proposed use 
to an acceptable level in the adjacent properties if the noise level inside the public 
house does not exceed 82dB(A). If the required sound attenuation measures cannot 
be implemented, then additional noise monitoring of the sound insulation provided 
by the existing party walls will be necessary, and further restrictions may be 
necessary, including reduction in the hours of operation. These issues could be 
controlled by planning conditions if Members support the application. 
 
Plant and Machinery Noise  
4.15  It is indicated that any plant and machinery would be designed to a criteria of  
5dB below the background sound level. The adoption of this approach would be 
acceptable and would be required to be conditioned to protect against noise 
nuisance or loss of amenity due to plant and machinery noise. 

Page 58



 

Application Reference Number: 12/02985/FUL  Item No: 4c 
Page 7 of 11 

 
Odours 
4.16  Further information submitted by the applicant indicates that the initial low level 
of cooking would not require a commercial extraction unit in the first two years of 
trading. There is an openable window in the kitchen, and the proposed hood style 
fan would be adequate for the extraction from the proposed domestic size cooker. 
Any future changes to the types of food, numbers of covers etc served may 
necessitate ventilation, extraction and abatement.  Any planning permission would 
require the final details to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority in order to 
ensure that adequate odour control is provided.  Replacement kitchen 
extraction/ventilation would require a further planning permission. 
 
4.17  On balance, it is considered that the measures that are required to prevent the 
living conditions of the neighbours being harmed can be achieved, and there is no 
conflict with Policy GP1 and S6 of the Local Plan. 
 
Impact on Heritage Assets 
 
4.18 Fossgate is a significant street within the city centre and is a popular route 
providing leisure/ residential/ retail uses. There are a number of restaurants and 
public houses in the immediate area that are open in the evening similar to the 
proposed opening hours of the business. It is considered that an additional 
restaurant use in the area would not result in an over-concentration of such uses 
which would detrimentally affect its mixed city centre character. The appearance of 
the conservation area would not be affected by the use as it would be physically 
contained within the building. As neither the appearance nor the character of the 
conservation area would be harmed, there would be no conflict with Policy HE3 of 
the Local Plan. 
 
4.19 It is intended that a full and detailed assessment of the impact of the change of 
use on the Grade II and Grade II* Listed buildings will be covered in an application 
for Listed Building consent. However, under s.66 of the Planning (Listed Building 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 the local planning authority must have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest in respect of alterations to enable the change of use 
to be implemented.   
 
4.20 The list descriptions for the properties identifies the interiors as being 
significant, particularly exposed timbers, shop fittings, fireplaces and the staircase at 
no. 54. The main intervention at this stage to allow the change of use to be 
assessed would be the requirement for acoustic wall linings etc adjacent to the 
Bluebell Public House and flats at 26-28 Pavement; and minor alterations to the 
existing kitchen and toilets.  
 

Page 59



 

Application Reference Number: 12/02985/FUL  Item No: 4c 
Page 8 of 11 

4.21 It is considered that the works required could be implemented without affecting 
significant historic fabric, or unduly harming the integrity of the listed building.  
Works could be undertaken on the upper floors without harm to significant features 
and the insertion of wall linings could be designed to be reversible. The works in the 
kitchen area would take place in a modern extension at the rear of No.54, avoiding 
significant intervention in the Grade II* listed building.  The detail of these works 
could be secured by condition and a listed building consent application would also 
be required. 
 
4.22 Overall the scheme would secure a viable use for a currently vacant listed 
building  and subject to approval of details could be implemented without harm to 
the special interests of the listed building, thus complying with Policy HE4 of the 
Local Plan. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 It is considered that the change of use of the building to the proposed use would 
secure a viable economic use for the Listed Building which is currently vacant. The 
historic environment would be secured by the reuse of the building; additional 
employment opportunities would be provided, and the range of leisure facilities for 
residents and tourists would be extended in a sustainable location. The mixed use 
could be provided without harmful environmental problems, subject to appropriate 
planning conditions. The loss of retail use of the premises would not significantly 
detract from the quality of retail provision within the city centre. It is therefore 
concluded that there is no conflict with policies GP1, HE3, HE4, S5, S6, of the Local 
Plan and national planning guidance contained in the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  
 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 
1  TIME2  Development start within three years -   
 
 2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following plans and other submitted details:- 
 
Drawing No. 014412-01, Revision A, Proposed layout plan, received on site on 30 
January 2013 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

Page 60



 

Application Reference Number: 12/02985/FUL  Item No: 4c 
Page 9 of 11 

 3  The use shall not commence until full particulars and details of a scheme to 
insulate the premises against the transmission or airborne and impact sound has 
been submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority and the 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with any 
approval given. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of adjacent residents and prevent noise 
disturbance to nearby properties. 
 
4  No amplified noise or music, other than soft background music, shall be 
played in the premises at any time. Background music is defined as music with a 
sound level of no greater than 60dB(A) and any such music shall be played via a 
sound limiter. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of adjacent residents and prevent noise 
disturbance to nearby properties. 
 
5  All speakers mounted on the building fabric shall incorporate anti- vibration 
mountings, the details of which shall be submitted to, and approved by, the Local 
Planning Authority and the development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with any approval given. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of adjacent residents and prevent noise 
disturbance to nearby properties. 
 
6  The use shall not be carried on outside the hours of 10:00 - 24:00. 
 
Reason: To protect the living conditions of adjacent residential occupiers in 
accordance with Policies S6 and GP1 of the Development Control Local Plan. 
 
 7  Details shall be submitted to demonstrate that the noise level from plant, 
equipment and ducting shall be 5 dB (A) or greater below the measured 
background-noise level (L90) at the nearest noise-sensitive premises, these details 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before 
installation. The machinery, plant or equipment and any approved noise mitigation 
measures shall be fully implemented and operational before the proposed use first 
opens and shall be appropriately maintained thereafter. 
 
Reason: To protect the living conditions of adjacent residential occupiers and the 
amenities of local businesses in accordance with Policies S6 and GP1 of the 
Development Control Local Plan. 
 
8  Adequate facilities shall be provided for the treatment and extraction of 
odours, fumes and gases created by cooking in association with the development, 
such that there is no adverse impact on the amenities of local residents by reason of 

Page 61



 

Application Reference Number: 12/02985/FUL  Item No: 4c 
Page 10 of 11 

fumes, odour or noise. Details of the extraction plant or machinery and any filtration 
system required shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval; once 
approved it shall be installed and fully operational before the proposed use first 
opens and shall be appropriately maintained thereafter.  
 
Reason: To protect the living conditions of adjacent residential occupiers and the 
amenities of local businesses in accordance with Policies S6 and GP1 of the 
Development Control Local Plan. 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES:-  Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 
with particular reference to the vitality and viability of the city centre; the character 
and appearance of the Central Historic Core Conservation Area;  and the amenity of 
surrounding residents.  As such the proposal complies with Policies GP1, S5, S6,  
HE3 and HE4 of the City of York Development Control Local Plan ( 2005) and 
national planning guidance contained in the National Planning Policy Framework 
(2012). 
 
In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the 
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraphs 
186 and 187) in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the 
application.  The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to 
achieve an acceptable outcome: 
 
- Responses to the applicant following receipt of letter/emails concerning the request 
for additional information/   processing of the application 
 
- Request for and receipt of a Noise Impact Analysis ( Report by S and D Garritt Ltd, 
dated 19.11.2012)  
 
- Receipt of survey drawings of the existing building, received 13.12.12   
 
- Site meetings with agent and Council officials on 8 and 18 January 2013 following 
receipt of application 
 
- Agreed general layout of proposed uses with the agent 
 
- Agreed approach to sound insulation following on-site meeting with the agent 
 
 
 

Page 62



 

Application Reference Number: 12/02985/FUL  Item No: 4c 
Page 11 of 11 

2. LISTED BUILDING CONSENT REQUIRED 
 

For the avoidance of doubt, no works, including those required by the above 
conditions should be carried out without the applicant having first been granted a 
listed building consent.  This includes works to, or removal of the shop fixtures and 
fittings.  Should stripping out be required prior to the submission of an application for 
listed building consent you are advised to contact the local planning authority for 
advice beforehand.  Unauthorised work to a listed building which affect its character 
as a building of special architectural or historic interest is an offence under section 9 
of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  
 
3. CONDITION NO.8 
 
It is recommended that the applicant refers to the Defra Guidance on the Control of 
Odour and Noise from Commercial Kitchen Exhaust Systems for further advice on 
how to comply with this condition. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt any material alterations to the external appearance of 
the building cannot be approved under this condition and will require a further 
planning application.   
 
 
 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Fiona Mackay Development Management Officer  (Wed - Fri) 
Tel No: 01904 552407 
 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



�

��������

����

����

����

����

����

����

����

����

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not Set

Army and Navy Stores, 54-56 Fossgate, YO1 9TF
12/02985/FUL                                                                               

City of York Council

City and Environmental Services

01 February 2013

1:1000

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	Sub Committee site visits

	2 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 10/01/2013 West & City Centre Area Planning Sub-Committee

	4a Oliver House,  Bishophill Junior, York, YO1 6ES (12/03598/FULM)
	12 03598 FULM

	4b 57 Woodlea Avenue, York, YO26 5JX (12/03627/FUL)
	12 03627 FUL

	4c Army and Navy Stores, 54 - 56 Fossgate, York, YO1 9TF (12/02985/FUL)
	12 02985 FUL


